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URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-KSB  

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004  
   

PART I  
   

The “Company” or “Registrant” is used in this report to refer to Uranium Resources, Inc.  and its consolidated subsidiaries.  Items 1 
and 2 contain “forward-looking statements.”  These statements include, without limitation, statements relating to management’s expectations 
regarding the Company’s ability to remain solvent, capital requirements,  mineralized materials, timing of receipt of mining permits, 
production capacity of mining operations planned for properties in South Texas and New Mexico and planned dates for commencement of 
production at such properties, business strategies and other plans and objectives of the Company’s management for future operations and 
activities and other such matters.  The words “believes,” “plans,” “intends,” “strategy,” “projects,” “targets,” or “anticipates” and similar 
expressions identify forward-looking statements.  The Company does not undertake to update, revise or correct any of the forward-looking 
information.  Readers are cautioned that such forward-looking statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s disclosures under 
the heading: “Cautionary Statements” beginning on page 10.  

   
Certain terms used in this Form 10-KSB are defined in the “Glossary of Certain Terms” appearing at the end of Part I hereto.  

   
Item 1.  Description of Business  
   
The Company and Current Plan of Operation  

   
We were organized in 1977 to mine uranium in the United States using the in situ leach mining process, a process in which 

groundwater fortified with oxidizing agents is pumped into the ore body causing the uranium contained in the ore to dissolve.  The resulting 
solution is pumped to the surface where it is further processed to a dried form of uranium that is shipped to conversion facilities for sale to our 
customers.  This process is generally more cost effective and environmentally benign than conventional mining techniques.  
   

Since 1988, we have produced about 6.1 million pounds of uranium from two South Texas properties, 3.5 million pounds from 
Kingsville Dome and 2.6 million pounds from Rosita.  Additional mineralized uranium materials exist at Kingsville Dome.  The Rosita 
property is essentially at the end of its productive capacity, although some minor mineralized uranium materials remain that may be produced.  
In 1999 we shut-in our production because of depressed uranium prices, and from the  first quarter of 2000 until December 2004 we had no 
source of revenue and had to rely on equity infusions to remain in business.  During that period we raised a total of approximately $6.5 million 
allowing us to maintain the critical employees and assets of the Company until such time that uranium prices reached a level where it was 
prudent to commence operations.  Across this period, we performed ongoing restoration and reclamation at certain of our wellfields at Rosita 
and Kingsville Dome via an agreement with the State of Texas and our bonding company that allowed us access to approximately $3.2 million 
that had been pledged to secure restoration bonds (the “Restoration Agreement”).  

   
Since 2000, the spot price for uranium has increased from $7.10 to $21.75 at March 14, 2005.  In May 2004, we raised approximately 

$5.9 million by the sale of about 39.3 million shares of Common Stock at $0.15 per share and commenced the development and mining of our 
Vasquez property in South Texas.  Wellfield injection commenced in October 2004, and we produced approximately 76,200 pounds of 
uranium in the fourth quarter of 2004 and sold 72,350 pounds in December 2004.  

   
Production from Vasquez in the first three months of 2005 totaled approximately 100,000 pounds.  Our average monthly rate of production 
(33,000 pounds) is about 50% of that needed to satisfy the annual delivery requirements under our long-term uranium sales contracts.  The 
Company has experienced certain chemical and permeability obstacles in the Vasquez formation that were not experienced at our Kingsville 
Dome and Rosita properties.  As a result, our rate of production is lower than projected and our production costs are higher.  We have 
developed a plan to increase the production rate.  The plan calls for construction of an additional remote ion exchange plant (satellite plant) and 
the drilling of additional production wells to reduce the distance between our injection and production wells.  Beginning in late November 
2004, we began such an in-fill drilling program to evaluate its impact on the rate of extraction. We reduced the spacing between wells on a 
portion of the wellfield, and grades increased dramatically. As a result, we are now implementing the program in all existing wellfields and are 
designing new wellfields to reflect the closer well spacing.   We also plan to bring on additional wellfields to supply feed to the additional 
satellite plants sooner than previously projected in order to increase the  
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flow of wellfield solutions.  These actions are expected to provide an increased circulation of wellfield solution and achieve production rates 
that meet the annual scheduled deliveries under our delivery contracts.  Implementation of the plan is expected to cost between $2 and $2.6 
million.  We borrowed $600,000 on March 24, 2005 from five of our stockholders and are actively seeking the additional funding.  

   
During 2005, we plan to continue actively working towards the completion of the Production Area Authorization #3 review by Texas 

regulators at Kingsville Dome.  See “ Legal Proceedings .”   We expect the review will be completed in the fourth quarter of 2005, allowing 
the commencement of production at Kingsville Dome later this year or early in 2006.  The Company is currently evaluating contracting 
opportunities for the Kingsville Dome production.  

   
 During 2005, the Company plans to begin an active program to purchase additional uranium resources through the acquisition of 

known uranium deposits within the South Texas uranium trend.  These small deposits, ranging from 1.5 to 4 million pounds of uranium, are 
ideally suited for the Company’s satellite plant technology.  The Company plans to feed the resulting production through its currently idle 
Rosita Plant.  We plan to upgrade the Rosita Plant by the addition of an additional elution circuit and a yellowcake dryer.  In addition, the 
Company plans to begin an aggressive exploration program in favorable areas along the South Texas uranium trend.  Utilizing our database, the 
Company has identified a number of uranium target areas.  Discussions are under way to obtain the exploration rights to these properties.  The 
Company is actively pursuing funding for these projects.  

   
As of December 31, 2004, we had 50 employees, including four geologists, eight engineers and two certified public accountants.  We 

have field offices at Kingsville Dome, Vasquez, Rosita and Crownpoint, New Mexico.  
   
U ranium Reserves/Mineralized Material  

   
Based on the report of Richard F.  Douglas, Ph.D.  dated March 29, 2004 (“Douglas Report”) our Vasquez property had in-place 

proven reserves of 2.328 million pounds and probable in-place reserves of 1.413 million pounds.  The Douglas Report estimated that 
2.619 million pounds or 70% would be recoverable.  During 2004, we produced approximately 76,200 pounds of uranium from Vasquez, 
which revises the estimated recoverable pounds remaining at Vasquez at December 31, 2004 to 2.543 million pounds.  
   

In addition, our Kingsville Dome property has 318,000 pounds of probable in place reserves of which 223,000 pounds or 70% is 
estimated to be recoverable.  The Douglas Report also concludes that our New Mexico properties collectively have about 33 million pounds of 
in-place mineralized uranium materials.  We are unable to estimate the amount that may be recoverable.  Although not covered by the Douglas 
Report, we estimate that we have up to an additional 13 million pounds of in-place mineralized uranium materials on our Crownpoint property.  

   
Long-Term Delivery Contracts  
   

The following table provides information concerning the base quantities under our two long-term sales contracts from January 1, 2005 
through 2008 plus any escalations provided for in the contracts .  Both contracts have price escalations based upon inflationary indices.  

   

   
Overview of the Uranium Industry  

   
The only significant commercial use for uranium is as fuel for nuclear power plants for the generation of electricity.  During 2003, 440 

nuclear power plants were operating in the world and consumed an estimated 169 million pounds of uranium.  Worldwide production of 
uranium in 2003 (the most recent year for which statistics are available) was only about 92 million pounds.  In the United States, there are 104 
nuclear power plants that produce about 21% of the electricity used.  
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      2005  
   2006  

   2007  
   2008  

   Total  
  

Number of customers  
   2 

  

2 
  

2 
  

2 
      

Total long-term deliveries (000’s of pounds)  
   618 

   600 
   600 

   600 
   2,418 

  

Total sales (000’s)  
   $ 9,072 

   $ 7,875 
   $ 7,875 

   $ 7,875 
   $ 32,697 

  

Average sales price per pound  
   $ 14.69 

   $ 13.13 
   $ 13.13 

   $ 13.13 
   $ 13.52 

  



   
Based on reports by the Ux Consulting Company, LLC (“Ux”) and the Uranium Institute (“UI”), since the early 1990s, worldwide 

uranium production has satisfied only 51% of worldwide demand, and this ratio has also been true in the Western world.  Ux reports that the 
gap has been filled by secondary supplies, such as inventories held by governments, utilities and others in the fuel cycle, including the highly 
enriched uranium (HEU) inventories which are a result of the agreement between the US and Russia to blend down nuclear warheads.  In the 
period 2005-2010 Ux projects western production to be sufficient to cover only 45% of western demand.  

   
Ux reports that secondary sources combined with uranium production from existing uranium mines will not be sufficient to meet the 

world’s requirements.  New production will be needed.  Ux projects that the industry will need uranium prices to remain at or near current 
prices to stimulate the capital investment needed to support such new production.  

   
Spot price is the price at which uranium may be purchased for delivery within one year.  Spot prices have been more volatile 

historically than long-term contract prices, increasing from $6.00 per pound in 1973 to $43.00 per pound in 1978, declining to $7.25 per pound 
in October 1991, increasing to $16.50 per pound in May 1996 and again declining to $7.10 at December 31, 2000.  The spot price was $21.75 
at March 14, 2005.  
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The following graph shows spot prices per pound from 1983 to March 22, 2005, as reported by Trade Tech and Ux.  

   

  
   

All prices beginning in 1993 represent U 3 O 8 deliveries available to U.S.  utilities.  

   
The In Situ Leach Mining Process  

   
The in situ leach mining process is a form of solution mining.  It differs dramatically from conventional mining techniques.  The in 

situ leach technique avoids the movement and milling of significant quantities of rock and ore as well as mill tailing waste associated with 
more traditional mining methods.  It is generally more cost-effective and environmentally benign than conventional mining.  Historically, the 
majority of United States uranium production resulted from either open pit surface mines or underground shaft operations.  

   
The in situ leach process was first tested for the production of uranium in the mid-1960s and was first applied to a commercial-scale 

project in 1975 in South Texas.  It was well established in South Texas by the late 1970’s, where it was employed in about twenty commercial 
projects, including two operated by us.  

   
In the in situ leach process, groundwater fortified with oxygen and other solubilizing agents is pumped into a permeable ore body 

causing the uranium contained in the ore to dissolve.  The resulting solution is pumped to the surface.  The fluid-bearing uranium is then 
circulated to an ion exchange column on the surface where uranium is extracted from the fluid onto resin beads.  The fluid is then reinjected 
into the ore body.  When the ion exchange column’s resin beads are loaded with uranium, they are removed and flushed with a salt-water 
solution, which strips the uranium from the beads.  This leaves the uranium in slurry, which is then dried and packaged for shipment as 
uranium powder.  

   
We have historically used a central plant for the ion exchange.  In order to increase operating efficiency and reduce future capital 

expenditures, we began the design and development of wellfield-specific remote ion exchange methodology.  Instead of piping the solutions 
over large distances through large diameter pipelines and mixing the waters of several wellfields together, each wellfield will be mined using a 
dedicated satellite ion exchange facility.  This will allow ion exchange to take place at the wellfield instead of at the central plant.  A wellfield 
consists of a series of injection wells, production (extraction)  
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wells and monitoring wells drilled in specified patterns.  Wellfield pattern is crucial to minimizing costs and maximizing efficiencies of 
production.  The satellite facilities allow mining of each wellfield using its own native groundwater.  This eliminates problems associated with 
progressive buildup of dissolved solids in the groundwater, thereby enhancing mining efficiencies and uranium recoveries.  
   
Environmental Considerations and Permitting  

   
Uranium mining is regulated by the federal government, states and, where conducted in Indian Country, by Indian tribes.  Compliance 

with such regulation has a material effect on the economics of our operations and the timing of project development.  Our primary regulatory 
costs have been related to obtaining licenses and permits from federal and state agencies before the commencement of mining activities.  

   
Radioactive Material License.  Before commencing operations in both Texas and New Mexico, we must obtain a radioactive material 

license.  Under the federal Atomic Energy Act, the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission has primary jurisdiction over the issuance of 
a radioactive material license.  However, the Atomic Energy Act also allows for states with regulatory programs deemed satisfactory by the 
Commission to take primary responsibility for issuing the radioactive material license.  The Commission has ceded jurisdiction for such 
licenses to Texas, but not to New Mexico.  Such ceding of jurisdiction by the Commission is hereinafter referred to as the “granting of 
primacy.”  

   
The Texas Department of Health is the permitting agency for the radioactive material license.  For operations in New Mexico, 

radioactive material licensing is handled directly by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission.  
   
See “Description of Properties ” and “ Legal Proceedings ” for the status of our radioactive material license for New Mexico and 

our Texas properties.  
   
Underground Injection Control Permits (“UIC”).  The federal Safe Drinking Water Act creates a nationwide regulatory program 

protecting groundwater.  This act is administered by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the “USEPA”).  However, to avoid 
the burden of dual federal and state (or Indian tribal) regulation, the Safe Drinking Water Act allows for the UIC permits issued by states (and 
Indian tribes determined eligible for treatment as states) to satisfy the UIC permit required under the Safe Drinking Water Act under two 
conditions.  First the state’s program must have been granted primacy.  Second, the USEPA must have granted, upon request by the state, an 
aquifer exemption.  The USEPA may delay or decline to process the state’s application if the USEPA questions the state’s jurisdiction over the 
mine site.  

   
Texas has been granted primacy for its UIC programs, and the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality administers UIC 

permits.  The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality also regulates air quality and surface deposition or discharge of treated wastewater 
associated with the in situ leach mining process.  

   
New Mexico has also been granted primacy for its program.  The Navajo Nation has been determined eligible for treatment as a state, 

but it has not requested the grant of primacy from the USEPA.  Until the Navajo Nation has been granted primacy, in situ leach uranium 
mining activities within Navajo Nation jurisdiction will require UIC permit from the USEPA.  Despite some procedural differences, the 
substantive requirements of the Texas, New Mexico and USEPA underground injection control programs are very similar.  

   
Properties located in Indian Country and where status as Indian Country is in dispute remain subject to the jurisdiction of the USEPA.  

Some of our properties are located in areas that are Indian Country.  In others, the status is in dispute.  For these properties, we are a bystander 
in a dispute between New Mexico regulators and the USEPA.  

   
See “Description of Properties ” and “ Legal Proceedings ” for a description of the status of our UIC permits in Texas and New 

Mexico.  
   
Other.  In addition to radioactive material licenses and underground injection control permit, we are also required to obtain from 

governmental authorities a number of other permits or exemptions, such as for wastewater discharge, for land application of treated wastewater, 
and for air emissions.  

   
In order for a licensee to receive final release from further radioactive material license obligations after all of its mining and post-

mining clean up have been completed, approval must be issued by the Texas Department of Health along with concurrence from the United 
States Nuclear Regulatory Commission.  
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In addition to the costs and responsibilities associated with obtaining and maintaining permits and the regulation of production 

activities, we are subject to environmental laws and regulations applicable to the ownership and operation of real property in general, including, 
but not limited to, the potential responsibility for the activities of prior owners and operators.  

   
The current environmental regulatory program for the in situ leach industry is well established.  Many in situ leach mines have gone 

full cycle without any significant environmental impact.  However, the public anti-nuclear lobby can make environmental permitting difficult 
and timing unpredictable.  
   
Reclamation and Restoration Costs and Bonding Requirements  

   
At the conclusion of mining, a mine site is decommissioned and decontaminated, and each wellfield is restored and reclaimed.  

Restoration involves returning the aquifer to its pre-mining use and removing evidence of surface disturbance.  Restoration can be 
accomplished by flushing the ore zone with native ground water or using reverse osmosis to remove ions, minerals and salts to provide clean 
water for reinjection to flush the ore zone.  Decommissioning and decontamination entails dismantling and removing the structures, equipment 
and materials used at the site during the mining and restoration activities.  

   
The Company is required by the State of Texas regulatory agencies to obtain financial surety relating to certain of its future restoration 

and reclamation obligations as.  The Company has a combination of bank Letters of Credit (the “L/C’s) and performance bonds issued for the 
benefit of the Company to satisfy such regulatory requirements.  The L/C’s were issued by Bank of America and the performance bonds have 
been issued by United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company (“USF&G”).  The L/C’s relate primarily to our operations at our Vasquez project 
and amounted to $897,000 and $0, at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.  The L/C’s are collateralized in their entirety by certificates of 
deposit.  
   

The performance bonds were $2,835,000 on December 31, 2004 and 2003 and related primarily to our operations at Kingsville Dome 
and Rosita.  USF&G has required that the Company deposit funds collateralizing a portion of the bonds, and we have deposited approximately 
$335,000 as cash collateral for such bonds.  We are obligated by agreement with the bonding company to increase the cash collateral to an 
amount equal to 50% of the amount of the bonds, plus an additional $0.50 for each pound of uranium produced until the account accumulates 
an additional $1.0 million.  

   
We estimate that our actual reclamation liabilities for completed operations at Kingsville Dome and Rosita and current operations at 

Vasquez at December 31, 2004, are about $4.3 million of which the present value of $3.4 million is recorded as a liability as of December 31, 
2004.  Under an agreement reached on March 1, 2004, with the Texas regulatory agencies and our bonding company we agreed to fund 
ongoing groundwater restoration at the Kingsville Dome and Rosita mine sites at specified treatment rates, utilizing a portion of our cash flow 
from sales of uranium from the Vasquez site as a substitute for additional bonding.  

   
These financial surety obligations are reviewed and revised periodically by the Texas regulators.  
   
In New Mexico, surety bonding will be required before commencement of mining and will be subject to annual review and revision by 

the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission and the State of New Mexico or the USEPA.  
   
Water Rights  

   
Water is essential to the in situ leach process.  It is readily available in South Texas.  In Texas, water is subject to capture, and we do 

not have to acquire water rights through a state administrative process.  In New Mexico, water rights are administered through the New Mexico 
State Engineer and can be subject to Indian tribal jurisdictional claims.  New water rights or changes in purpose or place of use or points of 
diversion of existing water rights, such as those in the San Juan and Gallup Basins where our properties are located, must be obtained by permit 
from the State Engineer.  Applications may be approved subject to conditions that govern exercise of the water rights.  

   
Jurisdiction over water rights becomes an issue in New Mexico when an Indian nation, such as the Navajo Nation, objects to the State 

Engineer’s authority and claims tribal jurisdiction over Indian Country.  This issue may result in litigation between the Indian nation and the 
state, which may delay action on water right applications, and can require applications to the appropriate Indian nation and continuing 
jurisdiction by the Indian nation over use of the water.  The foregoing issues arise in connection with certain of our New Mexico properties.  
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In New Mexico, we hold approved water rights to provide sufficient water to conduct mining at the Churchrock project for the 

projected life of the mine.  We also hold three unprotested senior water rights applications that, when approved, would provide sufficient water 
for the projected life of the Crownpoint project.  The water rights for the Crownpoint project are in the review process by the New Mexico 
State Engineer Offices.  We cannot estimate the timing of the completion of such review but do expect a favorable result once the review is 
completed.  
   
Competition  

   
We market uranium to utilities in direct competition with supplies available from various sources worldwide.  The Company competes 

primarily based on price.  
   
Item 2.  Description of Properties  
   
South Texas  

   
Kingsville Dome  

   
The Property.  The Kingsville Dome property consists of mineral leases from private landowners on about 2,354 gross and net acres 

located in central Kleberg County, Texas.  The leases provide for royalties based upon a percentage of uranium sales of 6.25%.  The leases 
have expiration dates ranging from 2000 to 2007.  With a few minor exceptions, all the leases contain clauses that permit us to extend the 
leases not held by production by payment of a per acre royalty ranging from $10 to $30.  We have paid such royalties on all material acreage.  

   
Production History.  Initial production commenced in May 1988.  From then until July 1999, we produced a total of 3.5 million 

pounds.  Production was stopped in July 1999, because of depressed uranium prices.  
   
Further Development Potential.  We believe that there is a significant quantity of uranium remaining at Kingsville Dome.  We spent 

about $905,000 in capital expenditures in 2004, a significant portion of which related to upgrading and refurbishing our Kingsville Dome plant 
and facilities to accommodate processing of production from the Vasquez project.  Other capital expenditures during the year were made 
primarily for land holding and permitting costs.  

   
Permitting Status.  A radioactive material license and underground injection control permit have been issued.  As new areas are 

proposed for production, additional authorizations under the area permit are required.  Our Production Area Authorization #3 is being reviewed 
by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.  See “ Legal Proceedings .”  The term of the license and underground injection control 
permit is open-ended.  

   
Restoration and Reclamation.  During 2004, we conducted restoration activities as required by the permits and licenses on this project, 

spending approximately $256,000 on such activities.  In 2003, we spent about $21,000 in restoration costs.  
   
Rosita  

   
Only minor amounts of uranium remain at this property, and we have no current plans to mine it.  We are conducting restoration and 

reclamation, of which $315,000 was spent in 2004.  In 2003, we spent about $32,000.  
   
Vasquez  

   
The Property.  We have a mineral lease on 872 gross and net acres located in southwestern Duval County, in South Texas.  The term 

expires in February 2008.  The lease provides for royalties based upon 6.25% of uranium sales below $25.00 per pound and royalty rate 
increases on a sliding scale up  to 10.25% for uranium sales occurring at or above $40.00 per pound.  

   
Development Plan.  We commenced production from this property in October 2004.  We spent about $2.7 million in capital 

expenditures at Vasquez in 2004.  We produced 76,200 pounds of uranium in 2004 and sold 72,350 pounds.  
   
Permitting Status.  All of the required permits for this property have been received.  
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New Mexico Properties  

   
General.  We have various interests in properties located in New Mexico.  We have patented and unpatented mining claims, mineral 

leases and some surface leases.  We have spent $10.9 million to date on permitting for New Mexico.  Additional expenditures will be required 
and could be material.  We are unable to estimate the amount.  We expect that whatever is spent will occur over multiple years.  See “ Legal 
Proceedings ” for a discussion of the current status of our license for New Mexico.  

   
Churchrock  

   
The Property.  The Churchrock project encompasses about 2,200 gross and net acres.  The properties are located in McKinley County, 

New Mexico and consist of three parcels, known as Section 8, Section 17 and Mancos.  None of these parcels lies within the area generally 
recognized as constituting the Navajo Reservation.  We own the mineral estate in fee for both Section 17 and the Mancos properties.  We own 
patented mining claims on Section 8.  

   
The surface estate on Section 17 is owned by the United States Government and held in trust for the Navajo Nation.  We have royalty 

obligations ranging from 5% to 6 1 / 4 % and a 2% overriding royalty obligation to the Navajo Nation for surface use agreements.  

   
Development Plan.   We anticipate that Churchrock will be the first of our New Mexico properties we will develop.  We spent about 

$124,000 in 2004 for permitting activities and land holding costs and expect to spend between $100,000 and $200,000 for these activities in 
2005.  

   
Water Rights.  The State Engineer approved our water rights application in October 1999 and granted us sufficient water rights for the 

life of Churchrock.  
   
Permitting Status.  We have the radioactive material license for Section 8.  This license is subject to the continuing proceedings 

described under “ Legal Proceedings .”  With respect to the UIC permits, see “ Legal Proceedings. ”  We do not plan to pursue permits for 
Mancos at this time.  

   
Crownpoint  

   
The Property.  The Crownpoint properties are located in the San Juan Basin, 22 miles northeast of our Churchrock deposits and 35 

miles northeast of Gallup, New Mexico, adjacent to the town of Crownpoint.  The Properties consist of 619 gross and 521.8 net acres.  We are 
currently in negotiations for a lease on a 60% mineral interest in certain of the acreage.  

   
Development Plan.  We spent about $61,000 in 2004 for permitting activities and land holding costs and expect to spend between 

$100,000 and $200,000 for these activities in 2005.  
   
Water Rights.  We have three pending applications for appropriations of water, which give us the first three “positions in line” on the 

hearings list for the San Juan Basin.  Certain of the water rights may involve a claim of jurisdiction by the Navajo Nation.  
   
Permitting Status.   See “ Legal Proceedings ” for a discussion of the radioactive material license for Crownpoint.  The surface estate 

on Section 19 and 29 is owned by the United States Government and held in trust for the Navajo Nation and may be subject to the same 
jurisdictional dispute with respect to the UIC permit as for Section 8 and 17 in Churchrock.  

   
West Largo and Roca Honda  
   
In March 1997, we acquired the fee interest in 177,000 acres in northwestern New Mexico.  Several significant occurrences of 

uranium mineralization are know to be within this acreage, including a uranium mineralized property called the West Largo and a uranium 
mineralized property called the Rocha Honda.  Significant uranium exploration was conducted by other companies on these properties in the 
past, and we own the result of these past drilling and exploration programs.  

   
The West Largo property is about 21 miles north of the town of Milan and about 1.5 miles west of State Highway 509 in McKinley 

County, New Mexico.  The property lies about 3 miles to the northwest of the Ambrosia Lake District, a major producer of uranium by means 
of underground operations from the late 1950s to the early 1980s.  
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The Rocha Honda property lies about 4 miles northwest of the town of San Mateo in McKinley County, New Mexico.  We also own 

36 unpatented mining claims encompassing approximately 640 acres that are adjacent to the fee land.  
   
Insurance  

   
Our property is covered by various types of insurance including property and casualty, liability and umbrella coverage.  We have not 

experienced any material uninsured or under insured losses related to our properties in the past and believe that sufficient insurance coverage is 
in place.  Future losses if sustained would not be material.  
   
Reclaimed Properties  

   
We have completed production and groundwater restoration on our Benavides and Longoria projects in South Texas.  We completed 

the final stages of surface reclamation on these projects and received full and final release for these sites in 1999.  
   
We acquired the Section 17 leases in the New Mexico Churchrock district from United Nuclear Corporation.  It had conducted 

underground mining for uranium on Section 17 and had reclaimed these properties.  In the acquisition, we assumed any liability of United 
Nuclear Corporation for any remaining remediation work that might be required.  The New Mexico Energy Minerals and Natural Resources 
Department has not determined what, if any, additional remediation would be required under the New Mexico Mining Act.  If more 
remediation work is required, we believe it would not involve material expenditures.  
   
Item 3.  Legal Proceedings  
   
New Mexico Radioactive Material License  

   
In the State of New Mexico, uranium recovery by in situ leach (“ISL”) technology requires a radioactive material license issued by the 

United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission (the “NRC” or the “Commission”).  We applied for one license covering almost all properties 
located in both the Churchrock and Crownpoint districts collectively known as the Crownpoint Uranium Project.  The Commission issued an 
operating license for the Crownpoint Uranium Project in January 1998 that allowed ISL uranium recovery operations to begin in the 
Churchrock district.  In mid-1998, the Commission determined that certain Churchrock and Crownpoint residents who requested a hearing had 
standing to raise certain objections to the license.  An Administrative Law Judge conducted a hearing during 1999.  The Administrative Law 
Judge upheld the Churchrock Section 8 license and granted our request to defer any dispute on all but the Churchrock Section 8 property, until 
we make a decision whether to mine these other properties.  

   
The ruling was appealed to the Commission.  On January 31, 2000, the Commission issued an order concurring with the technical, 

substantive and legal findings of the Administrative Law Judge, but the Commission also determined that we must proceed with the hearing 
process for the other New Mexico properties beyond Churchrock Section 8.  Subsequently, the hearing process was held in abeyance until 2004 
pursuant to NRC supervised settlement negotiations between the parties  

   
In February 2004, the Administrative Law Judge issued an order, which concluded that we must make three specific changes to our 

submitted restoration action plan for Churchrock Section 8 in order to commence mining operations at Churchrock.  The Commission accepted 
our petition for review on two of three issues and subsequently overruled the Administrative Law Judge on these issues.  The Administrative 
Law Judge is proceeding with the hearing on the relevant issues at the remaining three mine sites.  The parties agreed to truncate the number 
and scope of the issues remaining for consideration at the three sites.  A scheduling order was issued February 9, 2005, and, barring appeals, all 
briefs on these two issues should be completed and filed by August 15, 2005.  Although the decisions to date have been favorable on all 
Churchrock Section 8 issues, there can be no assurance that the Crownpoint Uranium Project license will be maintained in its current form.  
   
New Mexico UIC Permit  

   
The State of New Mexico, the USEPA and the Navajo Nation are engaged in a jurisdictional dispute as to which entity has the 

authority to issue Underground Injection Control (“UIC”) program permits and, in the case of some of the Churchrock and Crownpoint 
properties, aquifer exemptions required to mine a portion of our Churchrock and Crownpoint properties.  The dispute was taken to the Tenth 
Circuit Court of Appeals, which in January 2000 decided in favor of USEPA jurisdiction and remanded the issue of whether the Section 8 
Churchrock property was a dependent Indian community, as that is a crucial factor  
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in determining whether a Federal UIC permit should be issued.  To date, no decision has been issued by USEPA Region 9 regarding this issue.  
   

On March 3, 2005, the New Mexico Environment Department (“NMED”) sent a letter to USEPA Region 9 requesting that USEPA 
determine whether the Section 8 Churchrock property is a dependent Indian community.  In this letter, NMED stated that such determination 
was necessary due to our inquiry into the possibility of requiring a Federal UIC permit for that property and argued that such property was not a 
dependent Indian community under relevant legal precedent.  We are awaiting further action by USEPA on this issue.  

   
Kingsville Dome Production Area 3  

   
We are involved in a dispute with certain intervenors over whether a hearing is required for a new production area within the boundary 

of our approved permit area at Kingsville Dome.  In the first quarter of 2000, the District Court of Travis County, Texas ruled that the Texas 
Natural Resource Conservation Commission’s (now renamed the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or TCEQ) decision to approve 
our third production area without granting a hearing to certain intervenors would require further review by that regulatory agency.  In order to 
expedite the process, we have requested a public hearing to avoid further litigation on the point.  We have also requested a public hearing 
regarding renewal of our waste disposal well permits at the Kingsville Dome Property.  The public hearing has been scheduled for the first two 
weeks in August 2005 and we expect it to be concluded and a determination made in the fourth quarter of 2005.  
   
Texas Department of Health Bonding Issues  

   
On January 16, 2003, the Texas Department of Health (“TDH”) requested that we post additional financial security for $3.5 million 

and threatened enforcement action if we failed to do so.  We objected to the request.  After consultation with the Department and several 
interim extensions, on March 1, 2004 we entered into a Restoration Performance Agreement with the TDH, the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality and United States Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company that resolves the bonding issues.  Through the Restoration 
Performance Agreement, we agreed to fund ongoing groundwater restoration at the Kingsville Dome and Rosita mine sites at specified 
treatment rates, utilizing a portion of our cash flow from sales of uranium from the Vasquez site as a substitute for additional bonding.  
   

Certain parties, including the county commissioners of Kleberg County, have challenged the Restoration Agreement.  One of the 
challengers, Kleberg County, has withdrawn its challenge and has agreed to accept the Company’s groundwater restoration plan under the 
Restoration Performance Agreement.  Other parties continue that challenge.  Under the agreement, Kleberg County has also agreed to withdraw 
its request for a public hearing regarding authorization of an additional production area at the Company’s Kingsville Dome property (discussed 
in the preceding paragraph) and the renewal of waste disposal wells permits at Kingsville Dome.  

   
Other  

   
The Company is subject to periodic inspection by certain regulatory agencies for the purpose of determining compliance by the 

Company with the conditions of its licenses.  In the ordinary course of business, minor violations may occur; however, these are not expected 
to cause material expenditures.  
   
Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  

   
In November 2004, we requested our stockholders to approve by consent action an amendment to our Amended and Restated 1995 

Stock Incentive Plan to increase the number of shares that may be issued upon the exercise of options granted under the plan from 4 million 
shares to 12 million shares.  A quorum was not achieved for the action and the action failed. 51,349,998 shares voted in favor, 3,690,046 shares 
voted against and 54,800 shares abstained.  
   

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS  
   

The factors identified below are important factors (but not necessarily all of the important factors) that could cause actual results to 
differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement made by, or on behalf of, the Company.  Where any such forward-
looking statement includes a statement of the assumptions or bases underlying such forward-looking statement, we caution that, while we 
believe such assumptions or bases to be reasonable and make them in good faith, assumed facts or bases almost always vary from actual 
results, and the differences between assumed facts or bases  
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and actual results can be material, depending upon the circumstances.  Where, in any forward-looking statement, the Company, or its 
management, expresses an expectation or belief as to the future results, such expectation or belief is expressed in good faith and believed to 
have a reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the statement of expectation or belief will result, or be achieved or accomplished.  
Taking into account the foregoing, the following are identified as important risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from 
those expressed in any forward-looking statement made by, or on behalf of, the Company.  
   
If we are unable to raise an additional $1.4 to $2 million in the near future, we will not be able to increase the rate of production at 
Vasquez to the level necessary to meet our delivery requirements under our long-term contracts.  
   

The rate of production from Vasquez is not adequate to satisfy the annual delivery requirements under our long-tern uranium sales 
contracts.  The cost to implement our plan to increase the production from Vasquez will be approximately $2 to $2.6 million of which we have 
raised $600,000.  If we are unable to raise the additional funds in the near future, we will be unable to implement the plan and produce 
sufficient uranium to satisfy our contractual delivery obligations.  

   
Although we believe that our plan to increase production will prove successful there can be no guarantee of success, even if we raise 

the necessary capital.  
   

Our ability to mine other properties after the Vasquez property is dependant on our ability to raise the necessary capital to do 
development drilling and finance the necessary infrastructure.  

   
Our plans call for mining the Kingsville Dome property next.  This will require a significant amount of additional capital, which we 

intend to finance through the issuance of additional equity and/or the incurrence of debt.  Our ability to do so will depend on the price of 
uranium remaining high and our ability to procure contracts for the sale of the uranium.  
   
Our inability to obtain financial surety would thre aten our ability to continue in business.  

   
In order to continue operations at the Vasquez property we expect to be required to post additional financial surety in the range of $1.2 

million with the state of Texas in the third quarter of 2005.  We will need to fully cash collateralize any letters of credit we obtain.  If we are 
unable to post the necessary cash collateral we will not be able to obtain the necessary letters of credit.  

   
We anticipate that our future bonding requirements will increase significantly when future development and production occurs at our 

sites in Texas and New Mexico.  The amount of the surety for each producing property is subject to annual review and revision by regulators.  
   
More stringent federal and state regulations could adversely affect our business.  

   
If we are unable to obtain or maintain permits or water rights for development of our properties or otherwise fail to manage adequately 

future environmental issues, our operations could be materially and adversely affected.  We have expended significant resources, both financial 
and managerial, to comply with environmental protection laws, regulations and permitting requirements and we anticipate that we will be 
required to continue to do so in the future.  Although we believe our properties comply in all material respects with all relevant permits, 
licenses and regulations pertaining to worker health and safety as well as those pertaining to the environment, the historical trend toward 
stricter environmental regulation may continue.  
   
The volatility of uranium prices makes our business uncertain.  

   
The volatility of uranium prices makes long-range planning uncertain and raising capital difficult.  The price of uranium is affected by 

numerous factors beyond our control, including the demand for nuclear power, political and economic conditions, and legislation and 
production and costs of production of our competitors.  
   
The only market for uranium is nuclear power plants, and there are only a few customers.  

   
We are dependent on a small number of electric utilities that buy uranium for nuclear power plants.  Because of the limited market for 

uranium, a reduction in purchases of newly-produced uranium by electric utilities for any reason (such as plant closings) would adversely affect 
the viability of our business.  
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The price of alternative energy sources affects the demand for and price of uranium.  

   
Lower prices of oil, gas, coal and hydro-electricity and the possibility of developing other low cost sources for energy, have made and 

could continue to make nuclear power a less attractive fuel to generate electricity, thus resulting in lower demand for uranium.  Maintaining the 
demand for uranium at current levels and future growth in demand will depend upon acceptance of nuclear technology as a means of generating 
electricity.  
   
Public acceptance of nuclear energy is uncertain.  

   
Lack of public acceptance of nuclear technology would adversely affect the demand for nuclear power and increase the regulation of 

the nuclear power industry.  
   
Because we have limited capital, inherent mining risks pose a significant threat to us.  

   
Because we are small with limited capital, we are unable to withstand significant losses that can result from inherent risks associated 

with mining, including environmental hazards, industrial accidents, flooding, interruptions due to weather conditions and other acts of nature.  
Such risks could result in damage to or destruction of our wellfield infrastructure and production facilities, as well as to adjacent properties, 
personal injury, environmental damage and processing and production delays, causing monetary losses and possible legal liability.  
   
Our inability to obtain insurance would threaten our ability to continue in business.  

   
We currently have liability and property damage insurance that we believe is adequate.  However, the insurance industry is 

undergoing change and premiums are being increased.  If premiums should increase to a level we cannot afford, we could not continue in 
business.  
   
If we cannot add additional reserves to replace production in the future, we would not be able to remain in business.  

   
Our future uranium production, cash flow and income are dependent upon our ability to mine our current properties and acquire and 

develop additional reserves.  Reserves at our Kingsville Dome and Rosita production sites were depleted in 1999, although there is the potential 
for developing additional wellfields at Kingsville Dome.  There can be no assurance that our properties will be placed into production or that 
we will be able to continue to find and develop or acquire additional reserves.  
   
Competition from better-capitalized companies affects prices and our ability to acquire properties, capital and personnel.  

   
The amount of uranium produced by competitors or imported into the United States has a material impact on uranium prices.  There is 

global competition for uranium properties, capital, customers and the employment and retention or qualified personnel.  In the production and 
marketing of uranium there are about 15 major producing entities, some of which are government controlled and all of which are significantly 
larger and better capitalized than we are.  We also compete with uranium recovered from the de-enrichment of highly enriched uranium 
obtained from the dismantlement of United States and Russian nuclear weapons and imports to the United States of uranium from the former 
Soviet Union.  
   
Over 52% of our shares of Common Stock is controlled by Principal Stockholders and Management  

   
Over 52% of our Common Stock is controlled by three stockholders of record.  In addition, our directors and officers are the beneficial 

owners of about 7% of our Common Stock.  This includes with respect to both groups shares that may be purchased upon the exercise of 
outstanding options.  Such ownership by the Company’s principal shareholders, executive officers and directors may have the effect of 
delaying, deferring, preventing or facilitating a sale of the Company or a business combination with a third party.  
   
The availability for sale of a large amount of shares may depress the market price for our Common Stock.  

   
The Company has 134,732,263 shares of Common Stock currently outstanding, of which 46.7% or 62,979,839 shares are owned by 

non-affiliates of the Company and are freely transferable.  All of the remaining shares may be sold under a  
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Registration Statement on Form SB-2.  The availability for sale of such a large amount of shares may depress the market price for our Common 
Stock and impair our ability to raise additional capital through the public sale of Common Stock.  The Company has no arrangement with any 
of the holders of the foregoing shares to address the possible effect on the price of the Company’s Common Stock of the sale by them of their 
shares.  
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GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN URANIUM INDUSTRY TERMS  
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claim  
   

A claim is a tract of land, the right to mine of which is held under the federal General Mining Law of 1872 and 
applicable local laws.  

         
concentrates  

   

A product from a uranium mining and milling facility, which is commonly referred to as uranium concentrate or U 

3 O 8 .  
         
conversion  

   
A process whereby uranium concentrates are converted into forms suitable for use as fuel in commercial nuclear 
reactors.  

         
cut-off grade  

   

Cut-off grade is determined by the following formula parameters: estimates over the relevant period of mining 
costs, ore treatment costs, general and administrative costs, refining costs, royalty expenses, process and refining 
recovery rates and uranium prices.  

         
gross acres  

   Total acres under which we have mineral rights and can mine for uranium.  
         
Indian Country  

   

A term derived from jurisdictional determinations in criminal law enforcement proceedings under 18 U.S.C. 
§ 1151 and understood to encompass territory situated within Indian reservations, land owned by Indian allottees 
and land within a dependent Indian community.  

         
lixiviant  

   
When used in connection with uranium in situ leach mining, a solution that is pumped into a permeable uranium 
ore body to dissolve uranium in order that a uranium solution can be pumped from production wells.  

         
mineralized material  

   

A mineralized body which has been delineated by appropriately spaced drilling and/or underground sampling to 
support a sufficient tonnage and average grade. Such a deposit does not qualify as a reserve, until a comprehensive 
evaluation based upon unit cost, grade, recoveries, and other material factors conclude legal and economic 
feasibility.  

         
net acres  

   Actual acres under lease which may differ from gross acres when fractional mineral interests are not leased.  
         
ore  

   
Naturally occurring material from which a mineral or minerals of economic value can be extracted at a reasonable 
profit.  

         
over feeding  

   
Operating enrichment plants in a manner that reduces plant operating costs but increases the amount of uranium 
required to produce a given quantity of enriched uranium.  

         
probable reserves  

   

Reserves for which quantity and grade and/or quality are computed from information similar to that used for 
proven (measured) reserves, but the sites for inspection, sampling and measurement are farther apart or are 
otherwise less adequately spaced. The degree of assurance, although lower than that for proven (measured) 
reserves, is high enough to assume continuity between points of observation.  

         
proven reserves  

   

Reserves for which (a) quantity is computed from dimensions revealed in outcrops, trenches, workings or drill 
holes; grade and/or quality are computed from the results of detailed sampling and (b) the sites for inspection, 
sampling and measurement are spaced so closely and the geologic character is so well defined that size, shape, 
depth and mineral content of reserves are well-established.  

         
reclamation  

   
Reclamation involves the returning of the surface area of the mining and wellfield operating areas to a condition 
similar to pre-mining.  

         
recoverable reserves  

   

Reserves that are either proven or probable, are physically minable and can be profitably recovered under 
conditions specified at the time of the appraisal, based on a positive feasibility study. The calculation of minable 
reserves is adjusted for potential mining recovery and dilution.  

         
reserve  

   
That part of a mineral deposit which could be economically and legally extracted or produced at the time of the 
reserve determination.  

         
restoration  

   

Restoration involves returning an aquifer to a condition consistent with our pre-mining use and removing 
evidences of surface disturbance. The restoration of wellfield can be accomplished by flushing the ore zone with 
native ground water and/or using reverse osmosis to remove ions to provide clean water for reinjection to flush the 
ore zone.  
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resources  
   

A resource is a concentration of naturally occurring minerals in such a form that economic extraction is potentially 
feasible.  

         
roll front  

   
The configuration of sedimentary uranium ore bodies as they appear within the host sand. A term that depicts an 
elongate uranium ore mass that is “C”  shaped.  

         
shut in  

   A term that refers to ceasing production or the absence of production.  
         
shut-in royalty  

   A lease clause permitting the extension of a lease not held by production by payment of a per acre royalty.  
         
slurry  

   Fine particles of uranium concentrated and suspended in water.  
         
spot price  

   The price at which uranium may be purchased for delivery within one year.  
         
surety obligations  

   

A bond, letter of credit, or financial guarantee posted by a party in favor of a beneficiary to ensure the performance 
of its or another party’s obligations, e.g., reclamation bonds, workers’ compensation bond, or guarantees of debt 
instruments.  

         
tailings  

   
Waste material from a mineral processing mill after the metals and minerals of a commercial nature have been 
extracted; or that portion of the ore which remains after the valuable minerals have been extracted.  

         
Trade Tech  

   
A Denver-based publisher of information for the nuclear fuel industry; the successor to the information services 
business of Nuexco.  

         
uranium or uranium 

concentrates  
   

U 3 O 8 , or triuranium octoxide.  

         
U 3 O 8  

   
Triuranium octoxide equivalent contained in uranium concentrates, referred to as uranium concentrate.  

         
waste  

   Barren rock in a mine, or uranium in a rock formation that is too low in grade to be mined and milled at a profit.  



   
PART II  

   
Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters  

   
Our shares have been quoted on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board since October 15, 2004 and we have been dually quoted on both 

the OTCBB and the Pink Sheets since that date.  From January 1, 2003 until June 24, 2003, we were quoted on the OTCBB.  From June 25, 
2003, until October 15, 2004, we were quoted only on the Pink Sheets.  

   
The following table sets forth the high and low bid prices for the Common Stock as reported on the applicable markets for the periods 

indicated:  
   

   
As of December 31, 2004, we had 134,507,263 shares of Common Stock outstanding.  On that date, there were 202 holders of record.  

   
Dividends  

   
We have never paid any cash or other dividends on our Common Stock, and we do not anticipate paying dividends for the foreseeable 

future.  
   
Item 6.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  
   
Forward Looking Statements  

   
This Item 6 contains “forward looking statements.”  These statements include, without limitation, statements relating to liquidity, 

financing of operations, continued volatility of uranium prices and other matters.  The words “believes,” “expects,”  “projects,”  “targets,” 
“estimates” or similar expressions identify forward-looking statements.  We do not undertake to update, revise or correct any of the forward-
looking information.  Readers are cautioned that such forward-looking statements should be read in conjunction with our disclosures under the 
heading: “Cautionary Statements” beginning on page 10.  
   
Financial Condition and Results of Operations  
   
2004 and 2003 Consolidated Results of Operations  
   

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, our net losses were $2.7 million and $0.3 million respectively.  The 2004 losses 
included the start-up costs for the Vasquez project and sales and cost of sales from Vasquez production during the fourth quarter.  During 2004, 
we sold 72,350 pounds of Vasquez production resulting in revenues of $1.0 million.  There was no uranium sold or revenues generated in 
2003.  The cost of sales and related royalties and commissions for Vasquez production sold in 2004 totaled $919,000; and we incurred 
$607,000 of pre-production and stand-by costs at the Vasquez, Kingsville Dome and Rosita projects that were charged to operations in 2004.  
In 2003, there was no cost of sales related to production sold during the year, but we did incur $491,000 of stand-by costs that were charged to 
operations during 2003.  Accretion and amortization of future restoration costs in 2004 and 2003 totaled $242,000 and $338,000, respectively.  
In 2004 and 2003, we charged to earnings the writedown of uranium assets of $46,000 and $340,000, respectively.  We incurred general and 
administrative charges and corporate depreciation of $2.0 million in 2004 and $884,000 in 2003.  The increase in these charges in 2004 resulted 
primarily from the increases in activities required to bring the Vasquez project into production during 2004.  In 2003, we recorded the 
cumulative effect of an accounting change as a result of the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.  143, Accounting for 
Asset Retirement Obligations (“FAS 143”).  
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      Common Stock  
   

Fiscal Quarter Ending  
   High  

   Low  
   

December 31, 2004  
   $ 0.88 

   $ 0.64 
   

September 30, 2004  
   0.75 

   0.36 
   

June 30, 2004  
   0.33 

   0.20 
   

March 31, 2004  
   0.38 

   0.25 
   

December 31, 2003  
   0.27 

   0.12 
   

September 30, 2003  
   0.29 

   0.02 
   

June 30, 2003  
   0.10 

   0.035 
   

March 31, 2003  
   0.08 

   0.04 
   



   
which resulted in an increase to earnings of approximately $1.4 million in 2003.  See “Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements” below.  

   
Selected Production, Price and Cost of Uranium Sold Data  
   

   

(1) The cost per pound excludes standby costs incurred in 2004 at Kingsville Dome and Rosita of $440,000 and pre-production 
operational costs at Vasquez of $167,000.  Such standby and pre-production costs were charged to operating expense in 2004.  It also excludes 
any amortization of $2.7 million of Vasquez costs capitalized in prior periods and written off prior to 2004.  

   
(2) Cost of produced pounds sold includes plant and wellfield operations costs ($8.50) and depreciation and depletion of capital costs 

($3.26).  The estimated future costs of restoring the groundwater and the reclamation and decommissioning of surface and facilities ($1.20/lb.) 
are treated as a period cost and are not included herein as a cost of production.  

   
Cash Sources and Uses  
   
In 2004, our primary source of cash flow was from financing activities in which we raised $7.3 million from the issuance of 

approximately 52.2 million shares of our common stock.  Of the cash raised, $6.5 million was from three private placements closed in January, 
February and May 2004, which resulted in the issuance of approximately 46.1 million shares of our common stock.  In the fourth quarter of 
2004, we issued approximately 6.1 million shares of common stock resulting from the exercise of certain outstanding warrants issued in 2000, 
and we also issued 515,000 shares of our common stock in the connection with the exercise of certain employee stock options.  The cash raised 
in these transactions was $675,000 and $100,000 respectively.  Additionally, in 2004 our other major source of cash resulted from the sales of 
uranium under our long-term contracts.  Such sources contributed approximately $668,000 of cash flow in 2004.  

   
Our uses of cash in 2004 were made primarily for expenditures for property, plant and equipment required to commence production at 

Vasquez of $2.7 million, additions made to Kingsville Dome primarily to ready the facility to process Vasquez production of $905,000 and 
other property additions in Texas and New Mexico of $340,000.  Other uses of cash included the purchase of certificates of deposit to 
collateralize the financial surety needs required under the terms of our operating licenses and permits of $831,000 and expenditures used in 
operations, restoration activities and other changes in working capital of $2.4 million, $572,000 and $183,000, respectively.  

   
In 2003, our primary sources of cash flow were from the issuance of approximately 12.5 million shares of our common stock, which 

contributed $581,000 of cash flow and the reduction in monies held in long-term certificates that collateralized our financial surety obligations 
of approximately $996,000 during the year.  

   
Uses of cash in 2003 were primarily for cash used in operations and other working capital needs of $829,000 and $1.1 million, 

respectively and expenditures for property, plant and equipment at our Texas and New Mexico projects of $341,000.  
   
Liquidity  

   
Severely depressed uranium prices, in mid-1999 caused us to reduce our payroll and shut in our producing properties.  From that time 

until 2004, the Company had relied on equity infusions to remain in business.  From August 2000 to February 2004, we raised a total of 
approximately $6.5 million by issuing shares of our Common Stock allowing us to maintain the critical employees and assets of the Company 
until such time that uranium prices reached a level where it was prudent to commence operations.  During this period, we performed ongoing 
restoration and reclamation at certain of our wellfields at Rosita and Kingsville Dome via an agreement with the State of Texas and our 
bonding company that allowed us access to approximately $3.2 million that had been pledged to secure restoration bonds (the “Restoration 
Agreement”).  

   
Since 2000, uranium prices have increased from a low of $7.10 per pound to $21.75 as of March 14, 2005.  In August 2003, we signed 

a sales contract to deliver approximately 300,000 pounds of uranium annually for the years 2005-2008.  In  
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      2004  
   2003  

   
Pounds of uranium produced  

   76,186 
  

—
   

Pounds of uranium sold  
   72,350 

   —
   

Average sales price per pound  
   $ 13.95 

   —
   

Cost of produced pounds sold (1), (2)  
   $ 11.76 

   —
   

Royalties/commissions per pound  
   $ 0.94 

   —
   



   
January 2004, we signed a second uranium supply contract to deliver approximately 300,000 pounds annually for the years 2005-2008.  Each 
of these contacts contains quantity flexibilities whereby the purchaser may elect to increase or decrease the amount of the uranium delivered 
each year by 15%.  Both customers exercised the option in 2005 to increase their deliveries bringing the total to be sold to each customer in 
2005 to 345,000 pounds of which 72,350 was delivered in 2004.  

   
In May 2004, we raised equity of approximately $5.9 million by the sale of about 39.3 million shares of Common Stock at $0.15 per 

share and commenced the development and mining of our Vasquez property in South Texas.  Wellfield injection commenced in October 2004, 
and we produced approximately 76,200 pounds of uranium in the fourth quarter of 2004.  In 2004, we accelerated certain of the 2005 scheduled 
deliveries under one of our long-term contracts and sold 72,350 pounds in December 2004, which resulted in approximately $1.0 million in 
revenue in the fourth quarter of 2004.  

   
Our projected cash requirements for 2005 are expected to be approximately $12.5 million and these expenditures are expected to be 

utilized for ongoing Vasquez production, development and related activities of $8.7 million (which includes ongoing financial surety 
requirements of $1.2 million required in the third quarter of the year), ongoing groundwater restoration activities at our Kingsville Dome and 
Rosita projects of approximately $700,000, permitting, licensing and land holding costs for our Texas and New Mexico properties of 
approximately $800,000 and general and administrative and other costs of approximately $2.3 million.  

   
In 2005, we expect production from the Vasquez project to be sufficient to meet our contracted deliveries of approximately 617,000 

pounds.  Such deliveries are expected to generate approximately $9.1 to $10.4 million in revenue during the year.  In order to achieve this 
expected production level we have developed a revised production plan to increase the production rates at Vasquez.  The revised plan calls for 
construction of an additional remote ion exchange plant (satellite plant) and the drilling of additional production wells in the wellfields to 
reduce the distance between our injection and production wells.  We also plan to bring on additional wellfields to supply feed to the additional 
satellite plant sooner than previously projected, in order to increase the flow of wellfield solutions.  These actions are expected to provide an 
increased circulation of wellfield solution sufficient to achieve our expected production rate.  In order to fund the needed activities we need to 
raise an approximate $2.0 to $2.6 million of additional capital in 2005.  We have raised $600,000 through borrowing from five or our 
stockholders and are actively seeking to raise the balance.  Should the Company be unable to achieve profitable operations or raise additional 
capital, it may not be able to continue operation.  These factors raise substantial doubt concerning the ability of the Company to continue as a 
going concern.  

   
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
   

We have secured financial surety relating to certain of our future restoration and reclamation obligations as required by the State of 
Texas regulatory agencies.  The Company has had a combination of bank Letters of Credit (the “L/C’s) and performance bonds issued for the 
benefit of the Company to satisfy such regulatory requirements.  The L/C’s were issued by Bank of America and the performance bonds have 
been issued by United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company (“USF&G”).  The amount of L/C’s issued was $897,000 and $0, at December 31, 
2004 and 2003, respectively and the L/C’s are collateralized in their entirety by certificates of deposit.  The amount of performance bonds 
issued was $2,835,000 on December 31, 2004 and 2003 and USF&G has required that the Company deposit funds collateralizing a portion of 
the bonds.  The amount of bonding issued by USF&G exceeded the amount of collateral by $2,500,000 and $2,434,000 at December 31, 2004 
and 2003.  In the event that either provider is required to perform under its financial surety or the financial surety is called by the state agencies, 
the Company would be obligated to pay any expenditures in excess of the collateral.  

   
Critical Accounting Policies  

   
Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements beginning on page F-8 of this 

Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.  We believe our most critical accounting policies involve those requiring the use of significant estimates and 
assumptions in determining values or projecting future costs.  

   
Specifically regarding our uranium properties, significant estimates were utilized in determining the carrying value of these assets.  

These assets have been recorded at their estimated net realizable value for impairment purposes on a liquidation basis, which is less than our 
cost.  The actual value realized from these assets may vary significantly from these estimates based upon market conditions, financing 
availability and other factors.  
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Regarding our reserve for future restoration and reclamation costs, significant estimates were utilized in determining the future costs 

to complete groundwater restoration and surface reclamation at our mine sites.  The actual cost to conduct these activities may vary 
significantly from these estimates.  

   
Such estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 

at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period.  
   
Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

   
In March 2004, the EITF reached consensus on Issue 04-3, “Mining Assets: Impairment and Business Combinations.”  EITF 04-3 

relates to estimating cash flows used to value mining assets or assess those assets for impairment.  The Company assesses impairment on the 
projected mine life of each project utilizing existing technology.  The release, which was effective for business combinations and impairment 
testing after March 31, 2004, did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial results.  

   
In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No.  151, “Inventory Costs,” which amends the guidance in ARB No.  43, Chapter 4, 

“Inventory Pricing.”  SFAS No.  151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted 
material (“spoilage”) and requires such costs to be recognized as current-period charges.  Additionally, SFAS No.  151 requires that allocation 
of fixed production overhead costs be based on normal capacity.  The Statement is effective for years beginning after June 15, 2005, with early 
adoption permitted.  Implementation of the Statement is not expected to have a significant effect on the Company’s financial statements  

   
In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No.  153, “Exchange of Nonmonetary Assets an 

amendment of APB Opinion No.  29.” SFAS No.  153 eliminates the exception from fair value measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of 
similar productive assets and replaces it with an exception for exchanges that do not have commercial substance.  The Statement is effective for 
nonmonetary exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005.  Implementation of the Statement is not expected to have a 
significant effect on the Company’s financial statements.  

   
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No.  123 (revised 2004) (SFAS No.  123R) “Share-Based Payments.”  SFAS No.  123R 

requires that the cost from all share-based payment transactions, including stock options, be recognized in the financial statements at fair value.  
SFAS No.  123R is effective for the Company in the first interim period after December 15, 2005.  The Company expects to adopt the 
provisions of this statement in 2006 and is currently assessing the effect of SFAS No.  123R on its financial statements.  

   
In December 2002, the FASB issued FAS No.  148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an 

amendment of FASB Statement 123, (“FAS 148”).  FAS 148 amends FAS 123 to provide alternative transition methods for an entity’s 
voluntary change in their accounting for stock-based compensation from the intrinsic method to the fair value method under FAS 123.  In 
addition, FAS No.  148 amends the disclosure requirements of FAS No.  123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim 
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported 
results.  The Company currently plans to continue to account for its stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method as prescribed 
by APB No.  25 and will comply with the quarterly disclosure requirements in 2005.  

   
Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.  143, Accounting for Asset 

Retirement Obligations (“FAS 143”) which establishes an accounting standard requiring the recording of the fair value of liabilities associated 
with the retirement of long-lived assets in the period in which they are incurred.  The Company adopted FAS 143 effective January 1, 2003.  

   
As a result of adoption of the FAS 143, the Company recorded a net reduction in its restoration liability of approximately $1.4 million 

at January 1, 2003.  The Company had previously recorded the undiscounted future estimated restoration costs into expense.  Under FAS 143, 
future restoration liabilities are usually added to the carrying value of the related asset but the Company recorded them to expense because the 
associated properties have been fully impaired.  Under FAS 143 the present value of the restoration costs are recorded instead of the 
undiscounted amount.  
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Item 7.  Financial Statements  

   
The information called for by this item appears on pages F-1 through F-22.  

   
Item 8.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  

   
None  

   
Item 8A.  Controls and Procedures.  

   
The principal executive and principal financial officers of the Company have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and 

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report (evaluation date) and have concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures 
are adequate and effective based upon their evaluation as of the evaluation date.  

   
There were no significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these internal controls 

subsequent to the date of the most recent evaluation.  
   
Item 8B.  Other Information.  

   
On March 28, 2005, the Company borrowed $600,000 pursuant to a Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 2005.  The lenders are 

five (5) stockholders of the Company.  The Notes are unsecured, mature on March 24, 2006 and bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum.  
The proceeds will be used to commence the new development plan for Vasquez and for general and administrative expenses.  
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PART III  

   
Pursuant to Instruction E(3) to Form 10-KSB, Items 9, 10, 11, 12 and 14 are omitted because we intend to file a definitive proxy statement 
pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 not later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.  The 
information required by such items will be included in the definitive proxy statement filed for our 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is 
hereby incorporated by reference.  
   
Item 9.  Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons: Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act  
   
Item 10.  Executive Compensation  
   
Item 11.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.  
   
Item 12.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.  
   
Item 13.  Exhibits  

   
See Index to Exhibits on page E-1 for a listing of the exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report.  

   
Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services.  
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SIGNATURES  

   
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report 

to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
   

   
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on 

behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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Date: March 30, 2005  
   

      
   

URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  
      
      
   

By:  /s/ PAUL K. WILLMOTT  
      

Paul K. Willmott, President and Chief  
Executive Officer  

Signature  
      Date  

         
         
/s/ PAUL K. WILLMOTT  

      

Paul K. Willmott,  
   

March 30, 2005  
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer  

      

         
         
/s/ THOMAS H. EHRLICH  

      

Thomas H. Ehrlich,  
   

March 30, 2005  
Vice President—Finance and Chief Financial Officer  

      

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)  
      

         
         
/s/ LELAND O. ERDAHL  

      

Leland O. Erdahl, Director  
   

March 30, 2005  
         
         
/s/ GEORGE R. IRELAND  

      

George R. Ireland, Director  
   

March 30, 2005  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

   
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders  
Uranium Resources, Inc.:  
Lewisville, Texas  
   
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Uranium Resources, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended.  These consolidated financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audits.  
   
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  The Company has determined that it is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, and audit of its internal control 
over financial reporting.  Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  
   
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Uranium 
Resources, Inc. as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  
   
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to 
the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses due to depressed uranium prices and future working capital requirements 
are dependent on the Company’s ability to generate profitable operations or raise additional capital. Should the Company not be able to 
generate profitable operations or raise additional capital, the Company may not be able to continue operations.  These conditions raise 
substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described 
in Note 2.  The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.  
   

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company adopted, effective January 1, 2003, Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.  
   
   
HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP  
   
Dallas, Texas  
March 25, 2005  
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URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

   
ASSETS  

   

   
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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      December 31,  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   
Current assets:  

             
Cash and cash equivalents  

   $ 268,866 
   $ 309,625 

   
Receivables, net  

   369,494 
   25,250 

   
Uranium and materials/supplies inventory  

   45,151 
   65,397 

   
Prepaid and other current assets  

   108,799 
   13,371 

   
Total current assets  

   792,310 
   413,643 

   
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:  

             
Uranium properties  

   45,456,483 
   41,788,721 

   
Other property, plant and equipment  

   276,271 
   254,960 

   
Less-accumulated depreciation, depletion and impairment  

   (41,424,883 )  (41,359,799 )  
Net property, plant and equipment  

   4,307,871 
   683,882 

   
Other assets  

   259,532 
   —

   
Long-term investment:  

             
Certificate of deposit, restricted  

   1,232,067 
   401,120 

   
   

   $ 6,591,780 
   $ 1,498,645 

   



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

   
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)  

   

   
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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      December 31,  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   
Current liabilities:  

             
Accounts payable  

   $ 505,591 
   $ 107,136 

   
Current portion of restoration reserve  

   1,200,327 
   83,000 

   
Accrued interest and other accrued liabilities  

   195,604 
   108,358 

   
Current portion of long-term debt  

   135,000 
   —

   
Total current liabilities  

   2,036,522 
   298,494 

   
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits  

   3,551,844 
   4,680,943 

   
Long-term debt, less current portion  

   450,000 
   585,000 

   
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 1, 2, 3, 4,5, and 11)  

             
Shareholders’  equity (deficit):  

             
Common stock, $.001 par value, shares authorized: 2004 - 200,000,000; 2003 - 100,000,000 shares 

issued and outstanding (net of treasury shares): 2004-134,507,263; 2003-81,824,193  
   134,660 

   81,977 
   

Paid-in capital  
   60,530,994 

   53,211,487 
   

Accumulated deficit  
   (60,102,822 )  (57,349,838 ) 

Less: Treasury stock (152,500 shares), at cost  
   (9,418 )  (9,418 ) 

Total shareholders’ equity (deficit)  
   553,414 

   (4,065,792 ) 
   

   $ 6,591,780 
   $ 1,498,645 

   



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

   

   
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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      Year Ended December 31,  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   
Revenues:  

             
Uranium sales—  

   $ 1,009,283 
   $ —

   
Total revenue  

   1,009,283 
   0 

   
Costs and expenses:  

             
Cost of uranium sales-  

             
Royalties and commissions  

   67,956 
   —

   
Operating expenses  

   1,194,938 
   461,992 

   
Provision (credit) for restoration and reclamation costs  

   —
   (32,269 )  

Accretion/amortization of restoration reserve  
   241,810 

   338,242 
   

Depreciation and depletion  
   263,380 

   29,299 
   

Writedown of uranium properties and other uranium assets  
   46,188 

   340,287 
   

Total cost of uranium sales  
   1,814,272 

   1,137,551 
   

Loss from operations before corporate expenses  
   (804,989 )  (1,137,551 )  

Corporate expenses—  
             

General and administrative  
   1,999,394 

   879,755 
   

Depreciation  
   7,033 

   3,949 
   

Total corporate expenses  
   2,006,427 

   883,704 
   

Loss from operations  
   (2,811,416 )  (2,021,255 )  

Other income (expense):  
             

Interest expense  
   (8,122 )  (17,359 )  

Interest and other income, net  
   66,554 

   261,673 
   

Loss before accounting change  
   (2,752,984 )  (1,776,941 )  

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax  
   —

   1,447,070 
   

Net loss  
   $ (2,752,984 )  $ (329,871 )  

                      
Loss before accounting change per common share:  

             
Basic  

   $ (0.02 )  $ (0.02 )  
Diluted  

   $ (0.02 )  $ (0.02 )  
Cumulative effect of accounting change per common share:  

             
Basic  

   —
   $ 0.02 

   
Diluted  

   —
   $ 0.02 

   
Net loss per common share:  

             
Basic  

   $ (0.02 )  $ (0.00 )  
Diluted  

   $ (0.02 )  $ (0.00 )  



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DE FICIT)  

   

   
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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Common Stock  

   
Paid-In  
Capital  

   
Accumulated  

Deficit  
   

Treasury  
Stock  

   Shares  
   Amount  

Balances, December 31, 2002  
   69,329,193 

   $ 69,482 
   $ 52,642,982 

   $ (57,019,967 )  $ (9,418 ) 
Net loss  

   —
   —

   —
   (329,871 )  —

   
Common stock issuance  

   12,495,000 
   12,495 

   568,505 
   —

   —
   

Balances, December 31, 2003  
   81,824,193 

   $ 81,977 
   $ 53,211,487 

   $ (57,349,838 )  $ (9,418 ) 
Net loss  

   —
   —

   —
   (2,752,984 )  —

   
Common stock issuance  

   52,206,570 
   52,206 

   7,224,634 
   —

   —
   

Common stock issued for deferred compensation  
   476,500 

   477 
   94,823 

   —
   —

   
Balances, December 31, 2004  

   134,507,263 
   $ 134,660 

   $ 60,530,994 
   $ (60,102,822 )  $ (9,418 ) 



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  

   

   
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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      Year Ended December 31,  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   
Cash flows from operations:  

             
Net loss  

   $ (2,752,984 )  $ (329,871 )  
Reconciliation of net loss to cash used in operations—  

             
Provision (credit) for restoration and reclamation costs  

   —
   (32,269 )  

Cumulative effect of accounting change  
   —

   (1,447,070 )  
Accretion/amortization of restoration reserve  

   241,810 
   338,242 

   
Depreciation and depletion  

   270,413 
   33,248 

   
Writedown of uranium properties and other assets  

   46,188 
   340,287 

   
Decrease in restoration and reclamation accrual  

   (571,705 )  —
   

Deferred compensation  
   181,888 

   133,911 
   

Other non-cash items, net  
   226,253 

   134,778 
   

Cash flow used in operations, before changes in operating working capital items  
   (2,358,137 )  (828,744 )  

Effect of changes in operating working capital items—  
             

Increase in receivables  
   (344,244 )  (25,250 )  

(Increase) decrease in inventories  
   (19,644 )  2,076 

   
(Increase) decrease in prepaid and other current assets  

   (272,765 )  (124,629 )  
Increase (decrease) in payables and accrued liabilities  

   453,666 
   (975,401 )  

Net cash used in operations  
   (2,541,124 )  (1,951,948 )  

Investing activities:  
             

(Increase) decrease in certificate of deposit, restricted  
   (830,947 )  996,395 

   
Additions to property, plant and equipment—  

             
Kingsville Dome  

   (905,001 )  (79,172 )  
Rosita  

   (43,448 )  (37,962 )  
Vasquez  

   (2,724,312 )  (162,865 )  
Churchrock  

   (124,037 )  (21,612 )  
Crownpoint  

   (61,157 )  (26,996 )  
Other property  

   (87,573 )  (12,684 )  
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  

   (4,776,475 )  655,104 
   

Financing activities:  
             

Issuance of Common Stock, net  
   7,276,840 

   581,000 
   

Net cash provided by financing activities  
   7,276,840 

   581,000 
   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  
   (40,759 )  (715,844 )  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  
   309,625 

   1,025,469 
   

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  
   $ 268,866 

   $ 309,625 
   



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003  

   
1.                                       SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
   
Principles of Consolidation and Description of Company  

   
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America and include the accounts of Uranium Resources, Inc.  (“URI”) and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively “the 
Company”).  All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  

   
URI was formed in 1977 and domesticated in Delaware in 1987.  The Company is primarily engaged in the business of acquiring, 

exploring, developing and mining uranium properties, using the in situ leach (“ISL”) or solution mining process.  Historically, the primary 
customers of the Company have been major utilities who utilize nuclear power to generate electricity.  The Company has been, in the past, 
involved in a number of significant ISL uranium mining joint venture arrangements and has also provided consulting, plant design and 
construction expertise to other companies.  At present the Company owns production and development properties in South Texas and 
development properties in New Mexico.  The Company resumed uranium production in the fourth quarter of 2004 through the start-up of 
operations at its Vasquez project.  Prior to such operations, the Company had been in production stand-by since the first quarter of 1999 at its 
Kingsville Dome and Rosita projects.  Groundwater restoration activities have been conducted and are currently ongoing at both Kingsville 
Dome and Rosita.  
   
Inventories  

   
Uranium and materials and supplies inventory each of the Company’s projects are valued at the lower of average cost or market.  

   
Property, Plant and Equipment  
   

   
Uranium Properties  

   
Capitalization of Development Costs.  All acquisition and development costs (including financing, salary and related overhead costs) 

incurred in connection with the various uranium properties are capitalized.  Exploration and evaluation costs associated with uranium 
properties are expensed as incurred until such time that the existence of a commercially minable uranium deposit is confirmed.  All properties 
with significant acquisition or incurred costs are evaluated for their realizability on a property-by-property basis.  Any impairment of such costs 
is recognized through a reduction in the net carrying value of the asset.  (See Note 3—”Uranium Properties—Property Realizability”).  

   
Depreciation and Depletion.  Depletion of uranium mineral interests, permits, licenses and related development costs are computed on 

a property-by-property basis using the units-of-production method based on each projects pounds of recoverable uranium as estimated 
periodically by the Company’s geologists and engineers.  Depreciation and depletion is provided on the investment costs, net of salvage value, 
of the various uranium properties’ production plants and related equipment using the estimated production life of the uranium reserves.  During 
the periods that our facilities are not in production, depletion on our mineral interests, permits, licenses and development properties are ceased.  
Depreciation and  
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Property, Plant and  
Equipment  

Balances (net)  
At December 31,  

   
      2004  

   2003  
   

Uranium plant  
   $ 1,873,000 

   $ 561,000 
   

Uranium wellfield development  
   1,670,000 

   —
   

Permits and licenses  
   284,000 

   —
   

Mineral rights  
   274,000 

   53,000 
   

Other  
   207,000 

   70,000 
   

Total  
   $ 4,308,000 

   $ 684,000 
   



   
depletion of our plant facilities, machinery and equipment continues, at significantly reduced amounts, in accordance with the level of stand-by 
activity being conducted at each site.  Other ancillary plant equipment and vehicles are depreciated using a straight line method based upon the 
estimated useful lives of the assets.  
   
Other Property  

   
Other property consists of corporate office equipment, furniture and fixtures and transportation equipment.  Depreciation on other 

property is computed based upon the estimated useful lives of the assets.  Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.  Gain or loss 
on disposal of such assets is recorded as other income or expense as such assets are disposed.  
   
Capitalization of Interest  

   
The Company capitalizes interest cost with respect to properties undergoing exploration or development activities that are not subject 

to depreciation or depletion.  The average interest rate on outstanding borrowings during the period is used in calculating the amount of interest 
to be capitalized.  No interest was capitalized in the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.  Total interest costs in these periods 
were $8,000 and $17,000, respectively.  
   
Restoration and Reclamation Costs  

   
Various federal and state mining laws and regulations require the Company to reclaim the surface areas and restore underground water 

quality to the pre-existing mine area average quality.  Accruals for the estimated future cost of restoration and reclamation are made on a per-
pound basis as part of production costs, or when it is determined by an engineering study that an adjustment to the accrual is required.  During 
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 the Company adjusted its accrual for restoration and reclamation costs by $318,000 and 
$(32,000), respectively, as a result of revisions to the Company’s estimates for future restoration and reclamation activities.  

   
The Company has obtained financial surety relating to certain of its future restoration and reclamation obligations as required by the 

State of Texas regulatory agencies.  The Company has had a combination of bank Letters of Credit (the “L/C’s) and performance bonds issued 
for the benefit of the Company to satisfy such regulatory requirements.  The L/C’s were issued by Bank of America and the performance bonds 
have been issued by United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company (“USF&G”).  The amount of L/C’s issued was $897,000 and $0 at 
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively and the L/C’s are collateralized in their entirety by certificates of deposit.  The amount of 
performance bonds issued was $2,835,000 on December 31, 2004 and 2003 and USF&G has required that the Company deposit funds 
collateralizing a portion of the bonds.  The amount of bonding issued by USF&G exceeded the amount of collateral by $2,500,000 and 
$2,434,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003.  In the event that either provider are required to perform under their financial surety or the 
financial surety is called by the state agencies, the Company would be obligated to pay any expenditures in excess of the collateral.  
   
Revenue Recognition for Certain Uranium Sales  

   
The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of uranium under which substantially all of its obligations related to the delivery have 

been completed.  
   
Earnings Per Share  

   
Net earnings (loss) per common share—basic has been calculated based on the weighted average shares outstanding during the year 

and net earnings (loss) per common share-diluted has been calculated assuming the exercise or conversion of all dilutive securities.  Due to net 
losses incurred for the two years presented there were no dilutive securities included in any of these years.  

   
The weighted average number of shares used to calculate basic and diluted loss per share was 114,901,282 and 72,774,000 in 2004 

and 2003, respectively.  The potential Common Stock that was excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share was 9,758,763 and 
12,711,162 in 2004 and 2003, respectively.  
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Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs  

   
Debt discount and related expenses arising from the issuance of debt securities are amortized by the effective interest method.  

   
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  

   
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.  
   
Additional disclosures of cash flow information follow:  

   

   
Restricted Cash  

   
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had pledged certificates of deposit of $1,232,000 and $401,000, respectively, in order 

to collateralize financial surety required for future restoration and reclamation obligations related to the Company’s South Texas production 
and development properties.  These funds are not readily available to the Company and are not included in cash equivalents.  During 2003, the 
Company received funding secured by these assets of approximately $54,000 to conduct restoration activities in South Texas.  In 2003, the 
collateral and the corresponding accrued liability was reduced by approximately $997,000.  
   
Stock-Based Compensation  

   
In accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No.  123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation , 

the Company has elected to apply the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No.  25, Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees , and related interpretations, in accounting for its stock-based compensation plans.  Under APB No.  25, compensation is measured 
as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the Company’s Common Stock over its acquisition price at the date of grant.  
   
Use of Estimates  

   
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 

certain estimates and assumptions.  Such estimates and assumptions may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Specifically regarding the Company’s uranium properties, significant estimates were 
utilized in determining the carrying value of these assets and in the case of producing and development properties the pounds of uranium to be 
recovered.  The actual values received from the disposition of these assets and the amount of uranium recovered from these projects may vary 
significantly from these estimates based upon market conditions, financing availability and other factors.  

   
Regarding the Company’s reserve for future restoration and reclamation costs, significant estimates were utilized in determining the 

future costs and timing to complete the groundwater restoration and surface reclamation at the Company’s mine sites.  The actual cost to 
conduct these activities may vary significantly from these estimates.  
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Year  
Ended  

December 31,  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   
Cash paid during the period for:  

             
Interest  

   $ 0 
   $ 9,000 

   
                      
A non-cash transaction occurred in 2004 and such transaction is summarized as follows:  

             
                

The Company issued 476,500 shares of Common Stock in satisfaction of the conversion of 
deferred compensation by a Director of the Company.  

   $ 95,300 
        



   
Risks and Uncertainties  

   
Historically, the market for uranium has experienced significant price fluctuations.  Prices are significantly impacted by global supply 

and demand, which is affected by the demand for nuclear power, political, and economic conditions, governmental legislation in uranium 
producing and consuming countries, and production levels and costs of production of other producing companies.  Increases or decreases in 
prices received could have a significant impact on the Company’s future results of operations.  

   
The Company has outstanding bond obligations issued on its behalf by USF&G at December 31, 2004 and 2003.  The Company has 

deposited funds collateralizing a portion of these bonds.  In the event that USF&G is required to perform under the bonds or the bonds are 
called by the state agencies, the Company would be obligated to pay USF&G for its expenditures in excess of the collateral.  See “Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies—Restoration and Reclamation Costs” for further discussion.  
   
Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

   
In March 2004, the EITF reached consensus on Issue 04-3, “Mining Assets: Impairment and Business Combinations.”  EITF 04-3 

relates to estimating cash flows used to value mining assets or assess those assets for impairment.  The Company assesses impairment on the 
projected mine life of each project utilizing existing technology.  The release, which was effective for business combinations and impairment 
testing after March 31, 2004, did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial results.  

   
In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No.  151, “Inventory Costs,” which amends the guidance in ARB No.  43, Chapter 4, 

“Inventory Pricing.”  SFAS No.  151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted 
material (“spoilage”) and requires such costs to be recognized as current-period charges.  Additionally, SFAS No.  151 requires that allocation 
of fixed production overhead costs be based on normal capacity.  The Statement is effective for years beginning after June 15, 2005, with early 
adoption permitted.  Implementation of the Statement is not expected to have a significant effect on the Company’s financial statements.  

   
In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No.  153, “Exchange of Nonmonetary Assets an 

amendment of APB Opinion No.  29.” SFAS No.  153 eliminates the exception from fair value measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of 
similar productive assets and replaces it with an exception for exchanges that do not have commercial substance.  The Statement is effective for 
nonmonetary exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005.  Implementation of the Statement is not expected to have a 
significant effect on the Company’s financial statements.  

   
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No.  123 (revised 2004) (SFAS No.  123R) “Share-Based Payments.”  SFAS No.  123R 

requires that the cost from all share-based payment transactions, including stock options, be recognized in the financial statements at fair value.  
SFAS No.  123R is effective for the Company in the first interim period after December 15, 2005.  The Company expects to adopt the 
provisions of this statement in 2006 and is currently assessing the effect of SFAS No.  123R on its financial statements.  

   
In December 2002, the FASB issued FAS No.  148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an 

amendment of FASB Statement 123, (“FAS 148”).  FAS 148 amends FAS 123 to provide alternative transition methods for an entity’s 
voluntary change in their accounting for stock-based compensation from the intrinsic method to the fair value method under FAS 123.  In 
addition, FAS No.  148 amends the disclosure requirements of FAS No.  123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim 
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported 
results.  The Company currently plans to continue to account for its stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method as prescribed 
by APB No.  25 and will comply with the quarterly disclosure requirements in 2005.  

   
Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.  143, Accounting for Asset 

Retirement Obligations (“FAS 143”) which establishes an accounting standard requiring the recording of the fair value of liabilities associated 
with the retirement of long-lived assets in the period in which they are incurred.  The Company adopted FAS 143 effective January 1, 2003.  
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As a result of adoption of the FAS 143, the Company recorded a net reduction in its restoration liability of approximately $1.4 million 

at January 1, 2003.  The Company had previously recorded the undiscounted future estimated restoration costs into expense.  Under FAS 143, 
future restoration liabilities are usually added to the carrying value of the related asset but the Company recorded them to expense because the 
associated properties have been fully impaired.  Under FAS 143 the present value of the restoration costs are recorded instead of the 
undiscounted amount.  The difference between the present value and the undiscounted amounts of $1,447,000 as of December 31, 2002 
appears in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.  The estimated accretion expense 
for the change in the present value of the estimated liability recorded for 2004 was ($183,667).  

   
The following table shows the change in the balance of the restoration and reclamation liability during the year ended December 31, 

2004 and 2003:  
   

   
2.                                       FUTURE OPERATIONS  
   

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going concern, 
which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.  Because of depressed uranium 
prices the Company ceased production activities in 1999.  In 1999 and the first quarter of 2000 the Company monetized all of its remaining 
long-term uranium sales contracts and sold certain of its property and equipment to maintain a positive cash position.  During 2002 and 2003, 
the Company sought to raise funds to permit it to continue operations until such time uranium prices increased to a level that permitted the 
Company to resume mining operations.  
   

In July 2002, April 2003 and October 2003 the Company completed three private placements raising an aggregate of $2,429,000 
($2,364,000 net of the costs of the offering), $175,000 and $406,000, respectively through the issuance of 20,336,915, 4,375,000 and 8,120,000 
shares of Common Stock, respectively.  In January and February, 2004 we received $675,000 of temporary interim funding from investors by 
issuing 6,750,000 shares of Common Stock at $0.10 per share.  The funds raised in the private placements were used to fund the non-
restoration overhead costs of the Company.  The completion of the private placements resulted in a significant dilution of the current 
stockholders’ equity in the Company.  

   
On January 16, 2002, the Texas Department of Health requested that we post additional financial security in the amount of 

$3.5 million and threatened enforcement action if we failed to do so.  We objected to the request.  After consultation with the Department and 
several interim extensions, on March 1, 2004 we entered into a Restoration Performance Agreement with the Texas Department of Health, the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality and United States Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company that resolves the bonding issues.  
Through the Restoration Performance Agreement, we agreed to fund ongoing groundwater restoration at the Kingsville Dome and Rosita mine 
sites at specified treatment rates, utilizing a portion of our cash flow from sales of uranium from the Vasquez site as a substitute for additional 
bonding.  

   
Since 2000, the market price of uranium has risen steadily, with the average price increasing from $8.15 per pound in 2000 to $18.26 

in 2004.  The spot price of uranium at March 14, 2005 was $21.75 per pound and the long-term contract price was $27.00 per pound.  With 
these increases in uranium prices, the Company signed a long-term uranium delivery contract in 2003 and another in 2004 and in May 2004 
was able to raise $5,898,000 in gross proceeds in a private placement by issuing 39,317,005 shares of Common Stock at $0.15 per share.  The 
proceeds from this offering enabled the Company to, among other things resume production activities by starting up its Vasquez project.  
Production of uranium at the Vasquez project commenced in the fourth quarter of 2004.  

   
Should the Company be unable to achieve profitable operations or raise additional capital to bring on new uranium projects, it may not 

be able to continue operations.  The accompanying financial statements do not purport to reflect or provide for the consequences of 
discontinuing operations.  In particular, such financial statements do not purport to show (a) as to  
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      Year Ended December 31  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   
Reserve for future restoration and reclamation costs at January 1, 2004  

   $ 3,480,656 
   $ 3,174,683 

   
Additions  

   317,675 
   (32,369 ) 

Costs incurred  
   (571,705 )  —

   
Accretion expense  

   183,667 
   338,242 

   
Reserve for future restoration and reclamation costs at December 31, 2004  

   $ 3,410,293 
   $ 3,480,656 

   



   
assets, their realizable value on a liquidation basis or their availability to satisfy liabilities; (b) as to liabilities, the amount that may be allowed 
for claims and contingencies, or the status and priority thereof; (c) as to shareholder accounts, the effect of any changes that may be made in the 
capitalization of the Company; and (d) as to operations, the effect of any changes that may be made in its business.  These factors raise 
substantial doubt concerning the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.  

   
3.                                       URANIUM PROPERTIES  
   
Property Realizability  

   
The Company’s potential illiquidity in recent years necessitated a reevaluation of the Company’s method of valuing its uranium 

properties for accounting purposes.  Prior to the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company had valued its uranium properties on a held for 
production basis, i.e., assuming that each property would be ultimately placed into production.  During the period of the Company’s potential 
illiquidity, the Company determined that the liquidation value of the physical assets of each property best represented the fair market value of 
its long-term assets, and this valuation was used in determining the amount of impairment applicable to each of the Company’s uranium 
properties.  In 2004, the Company utilized the assumption that its uranium properties should be evaluated based upon their future production 
potential.  

   
The Company applied the discounted cash flow method for valuing the properties, because it represented the most reasonable method 

available.  Under this method, the Company reduced the carrying value of its uranium properties by $340,000 in 2003.  
   
Vasquez Property  

   
The Company holds a mineral lease on 872 gross and net acres located in southwestern Duval County, in South Texas.  
   
On March 22, 2004, the lawsuit over the validity of these leases was settled.  The Court of Appeals for the Fourth District in San 

Antonio, Texas affirmed the decision of the trial court on summary judgment that our leases were in full force and effect and awarding us our 
attorney’s fees.  The landowners and the intervenor have decided not to pursue the matter further and have accepted the judgment of the Court 
of Appeals.  The landowners have also agreed to a new lease on the property extending the term of the lease to February 2008, in exchange for 
which the Company has agreed to forego the award of attorney’s fees.  The leases provide for royalties based on uranium sales.  
   

In May 2004, the Company raised $5,898,000 through the issuance of 39,317,005 shares of Common Stock at $0.15 per share.  The 
proceeds from this offering enabled the Company to, among other things resume production activities by starting up the Vasquez project.  Pre-
production activities began in May 2004 resulting in the commencement of production of uranium at Vasquez in the fourth quarter of 2004.  
Cost of uranium sales in 2004 in the Consolidated Statements of Operations includes $167,000 of pre-production costs incurred to ready the 
facility for production.  

   
The net carrying value of the property was approximately $2,477,000 at December 31, 2004.  Such assets consisted of mineral rights, 

permits/licenses, wellfield development, plant buildings/uranium processing/drying facilities and restoration and other equipment of $91,000, 
$49,000, $1,670,000, $641,000 and $26,000 respectively in 2004.  The net carrying value of the property was zero at December 31, 2003.  The 
Company has recorded impairment provisions in the year ended December 31, 2003 of approximately $163,000 for the Vasquez property.  
   
Kingsville Dome Property  

   
In 1981, the Company acquired an exploration property in South Texas, known as Kingsville Dome, from Exxon Corporation.  After 

significant production in 1988-1990, the property was put on a standby basis because of low uranium spot prices and production ceased in 
September 1990.  

   
Wellfield development activities began in December 1995 at Kingsville Dome, which lead to the resumption of production at the 

property in March 1996.  The Company ceased uranium production operations in the first quarter of 1999 and the property was placed on 
standby.  
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Cost of uranium sales in 2004 and 2003 in the Consolidated Statements of Operations includes $334,000 and $239,000, respectively of 

costs incurred to maintain the facility while Kingsville Dome was on standby and not in production.  At December 31, 2004, the Company 
believes that the property contains a significant amount of undeveloped mineralized uranium material.  The Company is currently engaged in a 
public hearing regarding certain permitting issues involving this property.  The Company has recorded impairment provisions in the years 
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 of approximately $13,000 and $79,000, respectively, for the Kingsville Dome property.  The net carrying 
value of the property was approximately $1,298,000 and $417,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003 respectively.  Such assets consisted of 
mineral rights, permits/licenses, plant buildings/uranium processing/drying facilities and restoration and other equipment of $127,000, $91,000, 
$1,056,000 and $24,000 respectively in 2004 and consisted of plant buildings, uranium processing and drying facilities of $378,000 and 
restoration and other equipment of $39,000, respectively in 2003.  
   
Rosita Property  

   
In late 1985, the Company acquired several lease holdings in a uranium prospect (“Rosita”) in South Texas.  Construction and 

development activities began in the first quarter of 1990 and were completed in September 1990 with production commencing immediately 
thereafter.  The property was originally put on a standby basis and production ceased in March 1992.  

   
Wellfield development activity began in early 1995 at Rosita, which lead to the resumption of production at the property in 

June 1995.  The Company ceased uranium production operations in the first quarter of 1999 and the property was placed on standby.  
   
Cost of uranium sales in 2004 and 2003 in the Consolidated Statements of Operations includes $105,000 and $234,000, respectively of 

costs incurred to maintain the facility while Rosita was on standby and not in production.  The Company has recorded impairment provisions in 
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 of approximately $34,000 and $38,000, respectively for the Rosita property.  The net carrying 
value of the property at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $184,000 and $199,000, respectively.  Such assets consisted of plant 
buildings and uranium processing equipment of $175,000 and $177,000 in 2004 and 2003 respectively and restoration and other equipment of 
$9,000 and $22,000 in 2004 and 2003 respectively.  
   
Churchrock Properties  

   
In December 1986, the Company acquired properties in the Churchrock region of New Mexico.  
   
In September 1991, an additional 200 acres of leases were obtained in exchange for a future production royalty payment which, based 

upon the expected selling price of the uranium production, may vary between 5% and 10%.  
   
Permitting activities are currently ongoing on both of these properties.  The net carrying value of these properties was $124,000 at 

December 31, 2004 and zero at the end of 2003.  The assets consisted of mineral rights and permitting/licensing at December 31, 2004.  The 
Company has recorded impairment provisions in the year ended December 31, 2003 of approximately $22,000 for the Churchrock properties.  
   
Crownpoint Property  

   
In August 1988, the Company acquired the Crownpoint property, consisting of 163 acres of leases and related equipment and 

buildings for cash payments of $550,000, amounts payable in future years of $950,000 and a sliding scale overriding royalty on future 
production.  The present value of the future payable amount, $407,054 at December 31, 1996, is recorded as a purchase money obligation.  
Additionally, also in 1988, the Company staked 321 acres of claims in the same area.  We are currently in negotiations for a lease on a 60% 
mineral interest in certain of the acreage.  The net carrying value of these properties was $122,000 and $61,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003 
and consisted primarily of mineral rights, permits/licenses and plant buildings and equipment.  The Company has recorded impairment 
provisions in the year ended December 31, 2003 of approximately $27,000 for the Crownpoint properties.  
   
West Largo and Roca Honda  

   
In March 1997, the Company acquired the fee interest in 177,000 acres in northwestern New Mexico.  Several significant occurrences 

of uranium mineralization are known to be within this acreage including the uranium mineralized  
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properties called West Largo and Roca Honda.  Significant uranium exploration was conducted by other companies on these properties in the 
past and we own the result of these past drilling and exploration programs.  

   
The net carrying value of the property was $15,000 and zero at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.  The Company has 

recorded impairment provisions in the year ended December 31, 2003 of approximately $12,000 for these properties.  
   
4.                                       CONTRACT COMMITMENTS  
   
Sales Contracts  

   
Long-term contracts have historically been the primary source of revenue to the Company.  
   
In August 2003, we signed a sales contract to deliver approximately 300,000 pounds of uranium annually for the years 2005-2008.  In 

January 2004, we signed a second uranium supply contract to deliver approximately 300,000 pounds annually for the years 2005-2008.  
   
In 2004, the Company amended one of the sales contracts to accelerate a portion of the 2005 deliveries into 2004 to provide cash flow 

from its uranium inventory.  During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company sold approximately 72,000 pounds of uranium and generated 
approximately $1 million in revenue from these sales.  
   

The Company must continue to secure new profitable uranium sales contracts in order for it to continue in existence.  Demonstrated 
profitability under such new contracts will form the basis for the Company to be able to secure the requisite financing/equity infusion to resume 
production at its other South Texas and New Mexico projects.  The profitability under such new contracts will depend on a number of factors 
including the cost of producing uranium at the Company’s mining properties, the Company’s ability to produce uranium to meet its sales 
commitments and the market price of uranium.  

   
5.                                       LONG-TERM DEBT  
   
Convertible Note  

   
In 2000, the Company issued a $135,000 Convertible Note due July 17, 2005 in settlement of certain outstanding claims.  Interest on 

the Convertible Note is due at maturity and the Note bears interest at a rate of 6% per annum.  The Company may prepay the Note at any time 
and the holder of the Note may convert all principal and accrued interest into shares of the Company’s Common Stock at a conversion price of 
$0.75 per share.  
   
Summary of Long-Term Debt  
   

   
Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:  
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      At December 31,  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   
Long-term debt of the Company consists of:  

             
Crownpoint property (Note 3)  

   $ 450,000 
   $ 450,000 

   
Convertible Note  

   135,000 
   135,000 

   
   

   585,000 
   585,000 

   
Less—Current portion  

   135,000 
   —

   
                

Total long-term debt  
   $ 450,000 

   $ 585,000 
   

For the Twelve Months Ended:  
         

           
December 31, 2004  

   $  —
   

December 31, 2005  
   $  135,000 

   
December 31, 2006  

   $  —
   

December 31, 2007  
   $  —

   
December 31, 2008  

   $  —
   

December 31, 2009 and beyond  
   $  450,000 

   



   
6.                                       RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
   
In November 2004, the Company raised an additional $100,000 of equity by the issuance of 514,565 shares of Common Stock at 

$0.20 and $0.19 per share to an executive officer and director of the Company upon the exercise of outstanding stock options.  
   
In June and December 2004, the Company issued a total of 476,500 shares of Common Stock at $0.20 per share to a director of the 

Company upon his election to convert deferred compensation.  
   
7.                                       SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)  
   

Common Stock  
   
Common Stock Issued in 2003  

   
In April 2003, the Company raised $175,000 of equity by the issuance of 4,375,000 shares of Common Stock at $0.04 per share to a 

group of private investors.  
   
In October 2003, the Company raised an additional $406,000 of equity by the issuance of 8,120,000 shares of Common Stock at $0.05 

per share to a group of private investors.  
   
Common Stock Issued in 2004  

   
In January 2004, the Company raised $350,000 of equity by the issuance of 3,500,000 shares of Common Stock at $0.10 per share to a 

group of private investors.  
   
In February 2004, the Company raised an additional $325,000 of equity by the issuance of 3,250,000 shares of Common Stock at 

$0.10 per share to a group of private investors.  
   

In May 2004, the Company raised an additional $5,898,000 of equity by the issuance of 39,317,005 shares of Common Stock at $0.15 
per share to a group of private investors.  

   
In November 2004, the Company raised an additional $100,000 of equity by the issuance of 514,565 shares of Common Stock at 

$0.20 and $0.19 per share to an executive officer and director of the Company upon the exercise of outstanding stock options.  
   
In the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company raised an additional $675,000 of equity by the issuance of 5,625,000 shares of Common 

Stock at $0.12 upon the exercise of Warrants that were issued in August 2000.  
   
In June and December 2004, the Company issued a total of 476,500 shares of Common Stock at $0.20 per share to a director of the 

Company upon his election to convert deferred compensation.  
   

Increase in Authorized Shares  
   
In January 2004, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to 

increase the authorized shares of Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”), from 100,000,000 to 200,000,000.  
   
Stock Options  
   
Employee Stock Options  

   
On June 2, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company, subject to obtaining the approval of stockholders, adopted an amendment to 

the Company’s 1995 Stock incentive Plan to increase the number shares of Common Stock subject to the 1995 Plan to 12,000,000; and the 
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors issued to executive officers, subject to stockholder approval of the increase in shares 
eligible for issuance under the 1995 Plan, incentive stock  
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options to purchase 6,028,000 shares at a price of $0.29 per share and non-qualified options to purchase 722,000 shares at $0.29 per share.  
   

On June 2, 2004, the Board of Directors, subject to obtaining the approval of stockholders, adopted and approved the Company’s 2004 
Stock Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”) for key employees of the Company.  The 2004 Plan enables the Company to provide incentives to 
employees to perform well in a difficult and rapidly changing environment in the uranium mining industry.  The 2004 Plan originally 
authorized grants of incentive stock options and non-qualified options to purchase up to an aggregate of 2,000,000 shares of Common Stock.  
On December 9, 2004, the Board of Directors adopted an amendment increasing the number of shares subject to the 2004 Plan to 7,000,000.  In 
November 2004, options to purchase 988,000 shares at a price of $0.74 were granted to non-executive employees of the Company, and in 
December 2004, an option to purchase 2,000,000 shares at a price of $0.84 was granted to an executive employee of the Company.  At 
December 31, 2004, none of these options had been exercised or cancelled.  
   
Directors Stock Options  

   
On June 19, 2001, the Company granted options to certain directors of URI to purchase 300,000 shares of the Company’s Common 

Stock at an exercise price of $0.22 per share.  The grants were comprised of 200,000 options to replace the options that expired and were 
canceled in 2001 and 100,000 options granted to a newly elected director.  All such options are immediately exercisable and are scheduled to 
expire June 19, 2011 or 30 days after the holder ceases to be a director of the Company or one year after such holder’s death, whichever occurs 
first.  None of these options has been exercised and 100,000 of these options were cancelled as of December 31, 2004.  

   
On June 2, 2004 the Company adopted the 2004 Directors’ Stock O ption Plan (the “2004 Directors’ Plan”).  Under the 2004 

Directors’ Plan, each non-employee director on the date the Plan was adopted was granted an option to purchase three hundred thousand 
(300,000) shares of Common Stock.  Each non-employee Director elected or appointed to the Board of Directors for the first time will be 
granted an option to purchase 100,000 shares of Common Stock and, each Non-Employee Director shall be granted an option to purchase one 
hundred thousand (100,000) shares either, (a) upon his or her reelection at an annual meeting of the Company’s stockholders or (b) in any 
calendar year in which an annual meeting of stockholders is not held, on June 1 of such year.  The 2004 Directors’ Plan replaces an earlier plan 
that expired in 2004.  At December 31, 2004, there were outstanding options for the exercise of 32,000 shares under the old plan.  

   
Each of the two non-employee directors holds options covering 300,000 shares at an exercise price of $0.29 per share under the 2004 

Directors’ Plan at December 31, 2004.  
   
Options Issuable for Deferred Compensation  

   
The Company has a 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan (the “1999 Plan”) and Deferred Compensation Plans for 2000-2001, 2002, 

2003 and 2004 (the “2000-2004 Plans”) whereby executive officers and directors were permitted to defer up to 100% of their compensation for 
the years 1999-2004.  

   
Under the 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan (the 1999 Plan”), executive officers and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries 

were permitted to defer until January 11, 2006 up to 100% of their 1999 salary.  At the time of the deferral election, a participant could elect to 
receive payment of up to 100% of the deferred amount of salary in shares of our Common Stock.  A total of approximately $242,000 was 
deferred under the 1999 Plan of which $133,450 was paid by issuing 355,861 shares of Common Stock at $0.375 per share.  As of 
December 31, 2004, approximately $108,000 remains outstanding as deferred compensation under the 1999 Plan.  

   
Under the 2000-2004 Plans, the executive officers and directors were permitted to defer up to 100% of their 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 

and 2004 salary with payment thereof to be made on January 11, 2006.  On or before that date, the participant may elect to receive the deferred 
amount in shares of our Common Stock valued at $0.20 per share.  A total of $829,000 was deferred under the 2000-2004 Plans of which 
$95,300 was paid in 2004 by issuing 476,500 shares of Common Stock at $0.20 per share.  As of December 31, 2004, approximately $734,000 
remains outstanding as deferred compensation under the 2000-2004 Plans.  
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Market for Common Stock  

   
From August 22, 2001 until June 24, 2003, we were quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board (“OTCBB”).  From June 25, 2003 until 

October 14, 2004 we have were quoted on the Pink Sheets.  Since October 15, 2004, we have been quoted on both the OTCBB and the Pink 
Sheets.  
   
8.                                       STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS  

   
The Company has five stock option plans, the Employees’ Stock Option Plan, the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan, the 2004 Stock Incentive 

Plan, the Directors’ Stock Option Plan and the 2004 Directors’ Stock Option Plan.  The Company accounts for these plans under APB Opinion 
No.  25, under which no compensation cost has been recognized.  Had compensation cost for these plans been determined consistent with 
FAS 148, the Company’s net loss and loss per share (“EPS”) for each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, would 
have been adjusted to the following pro forma amounts:  
   

   
The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.  The following are the 

weighted average ranges for assumptions used for grants in 2004: expected volatility of 149%-179% and risk-free interest rates of 4.2%-5.0%.  
The range of the expected life of 5.7-9.4 years was used for options granted to the employees and directors.  The weighted average fair value of 
options granted in 2004 ranged from $0.29 to $0.84 per share.  The following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2003: expected 
volatility of 165% and risk-free interest rates of 5.50%.  An expected life of 5.7 years was used for options granted to the employees and 
directors, respectively.  The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2003 was $0.04.  

   
The Directors’ Stock Option Plan provides for the grant of 20,000 stock options to each of the non-employee directors along with 

additional annual grants of stock options upon re-election as directors at the Company’s annual meeting or at June 1 of each year if no annual 
meeting is held.  Also, on January 15, 1992, the Board of Directors approved the grant of 577,248 stock options under the Employees’ Stock 
Option Plan.  All of the previously outstanding options were canceled upon the effectiveness of the new options.  All of the options covered by 
this grant have been exercised or have expired unexercised at December 31, 2004.  
   

On June 2, 2004 the Company adopted the 2004 Directors’ Stock O ption Plan (the “2004 Directors’ Plan”).  Under the 2004 
Directors’ Plan, each non-employee director on the date the Plan is adopted shall be granted an option to purchase three hundred thousand 
(300,000) shares of Common Stock.  Each non-employee Director elected or appointed to the Board of Directors for the first time is granted an 
option to purchase 100,000 shares of Common Stock and, each Non-Employee Director shall be granted an option to purchase one hundred 
thousand (100,000) shares either (a) upon his or her reelection at an annual meeting of the Company’s stockholders or (b) in any calendar year 
in which an annual meeting of stockholders is not held, on June 1 of such year.  

   
On August 10, 1994, the Board of Directors increased the available options under the Employees’ Stock Option Plan and the 

Directors’ Stock Option Plan to 850,000 and 150,000 options, respectively.  There are 250,200 and 32,000 stock options outstanding under 
these plans, respectively at December 31, 2004.  On October 11, 1995, the Board of Directors elected to discontinue grants under the 
Employees’ Stock Option Plan with the adoption of a stock incentive plan covering key employees (the “1995 Stock Incentive Plan”).  The 
1995 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the grant of a maximum of 750,000 stock options.  These options may be qualified or nonqualified.  On 
June 5, 1998, the Company’s stockholders elected to increase the available options under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan to 1,250,000 options.  
During 2000, the Company’s board of  
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      2004  
   2003  

   
Net Loss: As reported 

   $ (2,752,984 )  $ (329,871 ) 
Pro forma stock based compensation costs under 

the fair value method, net of tax 
   (27,458 )  (138,392 ) 

Pro forma 
   $ (2,780,442 )  $ (468,263 ) 

  

As reported 
   $ (0.02 )  $ 0.00 ) 

Basic EPS: Pro forma 
   $ (0.02 )  $ (0.01 ) 

  

As reported 
   $ (0.02 )  $ 0.00 

   
Diluted EPS: Pro forma 

   $ (0.02 )  $ (0.01 ) 



   
directors elected to increase the available options under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan to 4,000,000, subject to stockholder approval.  Such 
approval was received in March 2001.  During 2004, the Company’s board of directors elected to increase the available options under the 1995 
Stock Incentive Plan to 12,000,000, subject to stockholder approval.  Such approval has not been was received at December 31, 2004.  

   
On June 2, 2004, the Board of Directors, subject to obtaining the approval of stockholders, adopted and approved the Company’s 2004 

Stock Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”) for key employees of the Company.  The 2004 Plan enables the Company to provide incentives to 
employees to perform well in a difficult and rapidly changing environment in the Uranium mining industry.  The 2004 Plan originally 
authorized grants of incentive stock options and non-qualified options to purchase up to an aggregate of 2,000,000 shares of Common Stock.  
On December 9, 2004, the Board of Directors adopted an amendment increasing the number of shares subject to the 2004 Plan to 7,000,000.  

   
As of December 31, 2004, there are 2,479,255 options outstanding under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan and 6,750,000 options that 

have been granted in 2004 under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan subject to approval of an increase in the available options under the 1995 Stock 
Incentive Plan by the stockholders and 2,988,000 granted under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan.  
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Additional details about the options granted under the stock option plans are as follows:  

   

   

(1) Subject to shareholder approval.  
   

The exercise price for the options granted under the stock option plans has been the approximate market price of the Common Stock 
on the date granted.  The terms of the options provide that no options may be exercised for one year after grant, and then for ratable exercise 
over the subsequent four-year period, with a total exercisable period of ten years.  

   
The exercise price for the options granted under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan has been the approximate market price of the Common 

Stock on the date granted.  The terms of the options are determined by the Board of Directors upon grant;  
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                  At December 31, 2004  
   

Date of Grant  
   

Exercise  
Price  

   
Options  
Granted  

   

Options  
Available  

for Exercise  
   

Options  
Exercised  

   
Options  

Canceled  
   

Options  
Outstanding  

   
January 15, 1992  

   $ 2.94 
   617,248 

   —
   327,625 

   289,623 
   —

   
May 22, 1992  

   $ 3.00 
   2,000 

   —
   1,000 

   1,000 
   —

   
Balances at December 31, 1992 

   
  

   619,248 
   —

   328,625 
   290,623 

   —
   

February 26, 1993  
   $ 2.50 

   10,000 
   —

   2,500 
   7,500 

   —
   

May 27, 1993  
   $ 3.50 

   2,000 
   —

   500 
   1,500 

   —
   

Balances at December 31, 1993  
   

  

   631,248 
   —

   331,625 
   299,623 

   —
   

July 11, 1994  
   $ 4.38 

   20,000 
   —

   —
   20,000 

   —
   

August 10, 1994  
   $ 4.25 

   140,000 
   —

   1,000 
   139,000 

   —
   

December 15, 1994  
   $ 5.88 

   3,000 
   —

   —
   3,000 

   —
   

Balances at December 31, 1994  
   

  

   794,248 
   —

   332,625 
   461,623 

   —
   

February 24, 1995  
   $ 4.13 

   210,000 
   100,000 

   —
   110,000 

   100,000 
   

April 12, 1995  
   $ 3.88 

   10,000 
   10,000 

   —
   —

   10,000 
   

May 26, 1995  
   $ 3.75 

   40,000 
   20,000 

   —
   20,000 

   20,000 
   

August 16, 1995  
   $ 8.38 

   100,000 
   100,000 

   —
   —

   100,000 
   

August 31, 1995  
   $ 6.88 

   127,508 
   40,200 

   —
   87,308 

   40,200 
   

October 11, 1995  
   $ 6.94 

   35,000 
   35,000 

   —
   —

   35,000 
   

December 19, 1995  
   $ 5.50 

   3,000 
   2,000 

   —
   1,000 

   2,000 
   

Balances at December 31, 1995  
   

  

   1,319,756 
   307,200 

   332,625 
   679,931 

   307,200 
   

February 22, 1996  
   $ 9.75 

   178,810 
   58,420 

   —
   120,390 

   58,420 
   

May 29, 1996  
   $ 17.00 

   3,000 
   2,000 

   —
   1,000 

   2,000 
   

May 30, 1996  
   $ 16.13 

   75,000 
   —

   —
   75,000 

   —
   

July 22, 1996  
   $ 11.13 

   50,000 
   —

   —
   50,000 

   —
   

Balances at December 31, 1996  
  

  

   1,626,566 
   367,620 

   332,625 
   926,321 

   367,620 
   

February 10, 1997  
   $ 7.125 

   182,405 
   57,300 

   —
   125,105 

   57,300 
   

April 1, 1997  
   $ 5.50 

   55,000 
   55,000 

   —
   —

   55,000 
   

May 1, 1997  
   $ 5.00 

   3,000 
   2,000 

   —
   1,000 

   2,000 
   

Balances at December 31, 1997  
   

  

   1,866,971 
   481,920 

   332,625 
   1.052,426 

   481,920 
   

February 23, 1998  
   $ 2.9375 

   172,000 
   94,000 

   —
   78,000 

   94,000 
   

June 5, 1998  
   $ 2.50 

   3,000 
   2,000 

   —
   1,000 

   2,000 
   

Balances at December 31, 1998  
   

  

   2,041,971 
   577,920 

   332,625 
   1,131,426 

   577,920 
   

June 18, 1999  
   $ 0.25 

   2,000 
   2,000 

   —
   —

   2,000 
   

Balances at December 31, 1999  
   

  

   2,043,971 
   579,920 

   332,625 
   1,131,426 

   579,920 
   

September 27, 2000  
   $ 0.20 

   2,250,000 
   2,026,735 

   223,265 
   —

   2,026,735 
   

Balances at December 31, 2000  
   

  

   4,293,971 
   2,606,655 

   555,890 
   1,131,426 

   2,606,655 
   

February 28, 2001  
   $ 0.19 

   475,500 
   152,800 

   291,300 
   31,400 

   152,800 
   

June 19, 2001  
   $ 0.22 

   20,000 
   —

   —
   20,000 

   —
   

Balances at December 31, 2001  
   

  

   4,789,471 
   2,759,455 

   847,190 
   1,182,826 

   2,759,455 
   

Balances at December 31, 2002  
   

  

   4,789,471 
   2,759,455 

   847,190 
   1,182,826 

   2,759,455 
   

June 1, 2003  
   $ 0.04 

   3,000 
   400 

   —
   1,000 

   2,000 
   

Balances at December 31, 2003  
   

  

   4,792,471 
   2,759,855 

   847,190 
   1,183,826 

   2,761,455 
   

June 2, 2004  
   $ 0.29 

   600,000 
   —

   —
   —

   600,000 
   

June 2, 2004(1)  
   $ 0.29 

   6,750,000 
   1,171,876 

   —
   —

   6,750,000 
   

November 12, 2004(1)  
   $ 0.74 

   988,000 
   247,000 

   —
   —

   988,000 
   

December 7, 2004(1)  
   $ 0.84 

   2,000,000 
   500,000 

   —
   —

   2,000,000 
   

Balances at December 31, 2004  
   

  

   15,130,471 
   4,678,731 

   847,190 
   1,183,826 

   13,099,455 
   



   
however, no options may be exercised after a period of ten years.  The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2004 and 2003 was 
$0.45 and $0.04, respectively.  
   
9.                                       FEDERAL INCOME TAXES  

   
The deferred federal income tax asset (liability) consists of the following:  

   

   
Major items causing the Company’s tax provision to differ from the federal statutory rate of 34% were:  

   

   
The Company’s net operating loss carryforwards generated in 2004 and in prior years have generally been valued, net of valuation 

allowance, at Alternative Minimum Tax (“AMT”) rates imposed by the Tax Reform Act of 1986.  It is assumed that these deferred tax assets 
will be realized at such rates.  

   
At December 31, 2004, approximately $48,628,000 of percentage depletion (available for regular tax purposes) had not been utilized 

to shelter book income and is available to carry forward to future accounting periods.  The Company received refunds of $0 and $138 from 
prior year’s federal income payments in 2004 and 2003, respectively.  

   
The Company also has available for regular federal income tax purposes at December 31, 2004 estimated net operating loss (“NOL”) 

carryforwards of approximately $47,593,000 which expire primarily in 2005 through 2025, if not previously utilized.  Following the issuance 
of the Company’s Common Stock in 2001, use of the Company’s NOL will be severely limited on an annual and aggregate basis.  For this 
reason, the NOL is not included as a deferred tax asset in the table above.  
   
10.                                OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS  

   
Other long-term liabilities and deferred credits on the balance sheet consisted of:  
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      December 31,  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   
Property development costs—net of amortization  

   $ 7,860,000 
   $ 8,500,000 

   
Accelerated depreciation  

   75,000 
   8,000 

   
Restoration reserves  

   1,303,000 
   1,213,000 

   
Net operating loss and percentage depletion carryforwards  

   —
   —

   
Valuation allowance and other—net  

   (9,238,000 )  (9,721,000 ) 
Total deferred income tax asset (liability)  

   $ 0 
   $ 0 

   

      For the Twelve Months Ended December 31,  
   

      2004  
   2003  

   

      Amount  
   

% of Pretax  
Income  

   Amount  
   

% of Pretax  
Income  

   
Pretax loss  

   $ (2,752,984 )  $ (329,871 )  
          

Pretax loss times statutory tax rate  
   (936,000 )  (34 )%  (112,000 )  (34 )% 

Increases in taxes resulting from:  
                       

Change in valuation allowance related to changes in 
temporary differences  

   936,000 
   34 %  112,000 

   34 %  
Income tax benefit  

   $ 0 
   0 %  $ 0 

   0 %  

      December 31,  
  

      2004  
   2003  

  

Reserve for future restoration and reclamation costs, net of current portion of $1,200,000 in 
2004 and $83,000 in 2003 (Note 1)  

   $ 2,209,966 
   $ 3,397,656 

  

Long-term accounts and interest payable  
   0 

   27,996 
  

Royalties payable  
   500,000 

   500,000 
  

Deferred compensation  
   841,878 

   755,291 
  

     $  3,551,844 
   $  4,680,943 

  



   
11.                                COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

   
The Company’s mining operations are subject to federal and state regulations for the protection of the environment, including water 

quality.  These laws are constantly changing and generally becoming more restrictive.  The ongoing costs of complying with such regulations 
have not been significant to the Company’s annual operating costs.  Future mine closure and reclamation costs are provided for as each pound 
of uranium is produced on a unit-of-production basis.  The Company reviews its reclamation obligations each year and determines the 
appropriate unit charge.  The Company also evaluates the status of current environmental laws and their potential impact on their accrual for 
costs.  The Company believes its operations are in compliance with current environmental regulations.  

   
The Company is from time to time involved in various legal proceedings of a character normally incident to its business.  Management 

does not believe that adverse decisions in any pending or threatened proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
financial condition or results of operations.  
   
12.                                SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  
   

Long-term Uranium Sales Contracts  
   
The Company currently has two long-term contracts that call for deliveries of 617,650 pounds of uranium in 2005 and 600,000 pounds 

of uranium in each of the years 2006 through 2008.  In February 2005, the Company renegotiated the pricing on one of the contracts.  The 
Company expects to realize under these two contracts an average base price of $14.69 per pound for its 2005 deliveries and $13.13 per pound 
for its 2006 through 2008 deliveries, plus any escalations provided for in the contracts.  

   
Note Purchase Agreement  
   
On March 28, 2005 the Company borrowed $600,000 pursuant to a Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 2005. The lenders are 

five (5) stockholders of the Company, each of whom may be considered an affiliate.  The Notes are unsecured, mature on March 24, 2006 and 
bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum.  The proceeds will be used to commence the new development plan for Vasquez and for general and 
administrative expenses.  

   
13.                                DISCLOSURES ABOUT THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTR UMENTS  

   
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.  107, “Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires disclosure 

about the fair value of financial instruments.  The Company is unable to assess the fair value of its debt instrument at December 31, 2003 due 
to the Company’s financial position and its inability to secure comparable financing.  
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EXHIBIT INDEX  
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Exhibit  
Number  

   Description  
         

3.1* 
   

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company dated February 15, 2004 (filed with the Company’s Registration Statement 
on Form SB-2 dated July 26, 2004, SEC File Number 333-117653).  

        
3.2* 

   Restated Bylaws of the Company (filed with the Company’s Form S-3 Registration No. 333-17875 on December 16, 1996).  
        

4.1* 
   

Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated February 28, 2001 between the Company and Purchasers of the Common Stock of the 
Company (filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KA dated July 26, 2001, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.1* 

   
Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option Plan (filed with the Company’s Form S-8 Registration No. 333— 00349 on 
January 22, 1996).  

        
10.2* 

   
Amended and Restated Employee’s Stock Option Plan (filed with the Company’s Form S-8 Registration No. 333-00403 on 
January 24, 1996).  

        
10.3* 

   
Amended and Restated 1995 Stock Incentive Plan (filed with the Company’s Form SB-2 Registration No. 333— 117653 on 
July 26, 2004).  

        
10.4* 

   
Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated June 19, 2001 between the Company and Leland O. Erdahl (filed with the 
Company’s 10-QSB dated August 13, 2001, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.5* 

   
Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated June 19, 2001 between the Company and George R. Ireland (filed with the 
Company’s 10-QSB dated August 13, 2001, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.7* 

   
Summary of Supplemental Health Care Plan (filed with Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Form S-1 Registration Statement 
(File No. 33-32754) as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 20, 1990).  

        
10.9* 

   
License to Explore and Option to Purchase dated March 25, 1997 between Santa Fe Pacific Gold Corporation and Uranco, Inc. 
(filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated June 30, 1997, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.12* 

   
Compensation Agreement dated June 2, 1997 between the Company and Paul K. Willmott (filed with the Company’s Annual 
Report on Form 10-K dated June 300, 1998, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.13* 

   
Compensation Agreement dated June 2, 1997 between the Company and Richard A. Van Horn (filed with the Company’s Annual 
Report on Form 10-K dated June 30, 1998, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.14* 

   
Compensation Agreement dated June 2, 1997 between the Company and Thomas H. Ehrlich (filed with the Company’s Annual 
Report on Form 10-K dated June 30, 1998, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.15* 

   
Compensation Agreement dated June 2, 1997 between the Company and Mark S. Pelizza (filed with the Company’s Annual 
Report on Form 10-K dated June 30, 1998, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.16* 

   
Uranium Resources, Inc. 1999 Deferred Compensation Plan (filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated 
June 30, 1999, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.17 

   2000-2001 Deferred Compensation Plan.  
        

10.22* 
   

Uranium Resources, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for 2002 (filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB 
dated November 13, 2003, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.23* 

   
Uranium Resources, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for 2003 (filed with the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB 
dated November 13, 2003, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
10.26* 

   
2004 Directors Stock Option Plan dated June 2, 2004 (filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 dated 
July 26, 2004, SEC File Number 333-117653).  



   

   

*                                          Not filed herewith.  Incorporated by reference pursuant to Rule 12b-32 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  
   
(1)                                   Certain provisions have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a request for 
confidential treatment.  
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Exhibit 10.17 

  
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FOR 2000 AND 2001  

   
ARTICLE I  

INTRODUCTION  
   

1.1                                  This Deferred Compensation Plan for 2000 and 2001 (the “Plan”) provides selected executive employees and directors of 
Uranium Resources, Inc.  and its wholly owned subsidiaries an opportunity to defer a portion of their compensation during 2000 and 2001.  

   
This document constitutes the entire Plan.  Any and all prior or contemporaneous oral or written communications hereby are 

superseded and abolished.  
   

ARTICLE II  
DEFINITIONS AND GENERAL PROVISIONS  

   
2.1                                  “ 1999 Plan ” means the deferred compensation plan established by Uranium Resources, Inc.  effective January 11, 1999, as 

amended and restated on September 17, 1999.  
   
2.2                                  “ Additional Deferred Amount ” means the amount of Compensation that a Participant has deferred under the 1999 Plan 

but as to which the Participant has not made a share election under the 1999 Plan.  The aggregate amount of such Compensation for all 
Participants under the 1999 Plan is $108,240.27.  

   
2.3                                  “ Code ” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and then in effect.  
   
2.4                                  “ Committee ” means the Plan Committee described in Article VII hereof.  
   
2.5                                  “ Common Stock” means the shares of the Corporation’s Common Stock, $.001 par value per share.  
   

10.27* 
   

Contract for the Purchase of Natural Uranium Concentrates (U3O8) dated August 12, 2003 (filed with the Company’s Form 10-
QSB dated November 15, 2004, SEC File Number 000-171711). (1)  

        
10.28* 

   
Contract for the Purchase of Natural Uranium Concentrates (U3O8) dated January 13, 2004 (filed with the Company’s Form 10-
QSB dated November 15, 2004, SEC File Number 000-171711). (1)  

        
        

10.29* 
   

Amendment #1 to Exhibit 10.28 (filed with the Company’s Form 0-QSB dated November 15, 2004, SEC File Number 000-
171711). (1)  

        
10.30 

   Amendment #2 to Exhibit 10.28. (1)  
        

10.31 
   Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 2005 and promissory notes issued thereunder.  
        

14* 
   

Uranium Resources, Inc. Code of Ethics for Senior Executives. filed with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB dated 
March 30, 2004, SEC File Number 000-17171).  

        
23 

   Consent of Richard A. Douglas.  
        

31.1 
   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  
        

31.2 
   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  
        

32.1 
   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  
        

32.2 
   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  



2.6                                  “ Compensation ” means those amounts otherwise payable in cash or by check or electronic deposit by the Corporation to 
an Eligible Person as salary for 2000 and 2001, which amounts are includable in his gross income for federal income tax purposes (without 
regard to Compensation deferred under this or any other plan maintained by the Corporation), including but not limited to directors’ fees, salary 
and bonus, but excluding any and all nonelective contributions (including matching contributions) made by the Corporation to any employee 
benefit plan (within the meaning of Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended).  Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the limitations imposed by Code Section 401(a)(17) do not apply to Compensation as defined under the Plan.  

   

 



   
2.7                                  “ Corporation ” means Uranium Resources, Inc, a Delaware corporation, together with any successor thereto which adopts 

this Plan by appropriate written action.  
   
2.8                                  “ Deferral Percent ” means the portion (expressed as a percentage) of the Compensation that a Participant elects to defer 

pursuant to Section 4.1 hereof.  
   
2.9                                  “Deferred Amount” means the amount of Compensation that a Participant has elected to defer pursuant to Section 4.1 

hereof plus the Additional Deferred Amount.  
   
2.10                            “ Designated Recipient ” means any person who becomes entitled to receive any distribution hereunder by reason of the 

death of a Participant.  
   
2.11                            “ Distribution Date ” means January 11, 2006.  
   
2.12                            “ Earned Compensation ” means at any date the amount of Compensation that the Corporation is obligated to pay 

Participant for services rendered before giving effect to the Participant’s deferral election.  
   
2.13                            “ Eligible Person ” means any employee or director of the Corporation or any of its wholly owned subsidiaries, but only so 

long as such person meets all of the requirements of Section 3.1(a) of the Plan.  
   
2.14                            “ ERISA ” means The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended and then in effect.  
   
2.15                            “ Participant ” means any Eligible Person who defers Compensation under the Plan.  
   
2.16                            “ Share Price ” means $0.20 per share.  
   
2.17                            “ General Provisions .”  The masculine wherever used herein shall include the feminine and singular and plural forms are 

interchangeable.  Certain terms of more limited application have been defined in the provisions to which they are principally applicable.  The 
division of the Plan into Articles and Sections with captions has been done for convenience only and is not to be taken as limiting or extending 
the meaning of any of its provisions.  

   
ARTICLE III  

ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION  
   

3.1                                  General Eligibility Conditions .  
   

(a)                                   To become eligible to participate in this Plan, an individual must be (i) an executive employee or a director of the 
Corporation or any of its wholly owned subsidiaries and (ii) designated as an Eligible Person on Exhibit A , as amended from time to 
time.  

   
(b)                                  Once an Eligible Person becomes a Participant, such individual shall continue to be eligible to defer Compensation 

under the terms of this Plan until such individual fails to meet at least one of the conditions described above.  If a Participant ceases to 
meet such conditions, his interest in the Plan and amounts deferred prior to the date he ceases to be an Eligible Person  

   
2  

 



   
shall continue to be held subject to the terms of the Plan.  For the purposes of Deferred Amounts that are to be distributed thereafter 
and for such purpose only, such person shall continue to be a Participant.  

   
3.2                                  Election to Participate .  To actively participate in the Plan, an Eligible Person must execute a Deferred Compensation 

Election in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C and shall file such election with the Committee.  
   
3.3                                  Share Election .  To elect to receive shares of Common Stock, a Participant shall execute and deliver to the Company the 

Share Election in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D on or before the Distribution Date.  
   

ARTICLE IV  
DEFERRAL OF COMPENSATION  

   
4.1                                  Deferral Elections .  As of the date hereof, the Participants have elected to defer that portion of their Compensation 

(expressed as a percent) as set forth in Exhibit B hereto.  Such elections are irrevocable unless the Corporation and the Participant agree 
otherwise.  

   
4.2                                  Period of Deferral .  All amounts that the Participants elect to defer shall be paid in cash on the Distribution Date or, at the 

election of the Participant prior to that date, shares of Common Stock as set forth in Article V.  Upon death or termination of employment, the 
Participant shall have a vested interest in Earned Compensation.  

   
4.4                                  Base Salary for Other Purposes .  Except as otherwise expressly prohibited by law or the terms of a benefit plan, any 

Deferred Amount shall continue to be counted as part of the Participant’s base salary for purposes of any other contracts between Participant 
and the Corporation, including, without limitation, those certain compensation agreements dated June 2, 1997 between the Corporation and 
certain of the Participants.  

   
ARTICLE V  

SHARE ELECTION  
   

5.1                                  Number of Shares to be Received .  If a Participant elects to receive payment of the Deferred Amount in shares of Common 
Stock, the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued for the Deferred Amount shall equal the Deferred Amount divided by the Share 
Price.  

   
5.2                                  Limitation on Sale of Shares .  All certificates representing any of the shares of Common Stock shall have endorsed thereon 

the following legend:  
   

“THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED (THE “ACT”).  THEY MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR 
HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AS TO THE 
SECURITIES UNDER SAID ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE 
CORPORATION THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.”  
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5.3                                  Withholding .  The Corporation will make appropriate withholding for all relevant federal, state and local tax purposes from 

the non-deferred portion of Compensation for any Participant.  On the Distribution Date if the fair market value of the Common Stock that a 
Participant will receive for any Deferred Amount is in excess of the Share Price, the Corporation will be required to withhold additional 
amounts based upon such excess.  The source of such additional amounts will be Compensation otherwise payable to the Participant on the 
Distribution Date, to the extent sufficient.  If such amounts are insufficient, the Participant will be required to pay to the Corporation the 
appropriate amounts as a condition to receipt of the shares.  

   
ARTICLE VI  

BENEFICIARIES  
   

If Participant has not designated a Designated Recipient, any distribution hereunder after the death of a Participant shall be payable 
first to his surviving spouse, if any, and if none, to his estate.  

   
ARTICLE VII  

PLAN ADMINISTRATION  
   

7.1                                  Administration .  The Plan shall be administered by a committee as provided in Section 7.2 hereof, as an unfunded deferred 
compensation plan.  

   
7.2                                  Plan Committee .  
   

(a)                                   The Committee shall be the Corporation’s Board of Directors.  No member of the Committee shall act or participate 
in any action of the Committee directly affecting his own Account under the Plan, unless such action is of general application to all 
Participants.  The Committee is authorized to interpret the Plan and, from time to time, may adopt such rules and regulations, 
consistent with the provisions of the Plan, as it may deem advisable to carry out the purposes of the Plan.  

   
(b)                                  The Committee shall have all powers necessary to accomplish the purpose of the Plan, including, but not limited to, 

(i) the discretionary authority to interpret the Plan; (ii) the discretionary authority to determine all questions relating to the rights and 
status of Eligible Persons, Participants and Designated Recipients; and (iii) the discretionary authority to make any and all rules and 
regulations needed or advisable for the administration of the Plan as are not inconsistent with the terms and provisions hereof.  

   
(c)                                   Without limiting the powers set forth herein, the Committee shall have the power to:  (i) change or waive in writing 

any requirements of the Plan to conform with law or to meet special circumstances not anticipated or covered in the Plan; 
(ii) determine the times and places for holding meetings of the Committee and the notice to be given of such meetings; (iii) employ or 
otherwise retain such agents and assistants, counsel (who may be of counsel to the Corporation herein), and clerical and other service 
providers as the Committee may require in carrying out the provisions of the Plan; and (iv) authorize one or more of their number, or 
any agent thereof, to execute or deliver any instrument on behalf of the Committee.  
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7.3                                  Statement of Participant’s Account .  As soon as practicable following December 31 in each year, and otherwise from time 

to time as the Committee in its sole discretion may direct, the Committee shall mail, via first class mail, to each Participant a written statement 
setting forth the Account of such Participant as of the end of a year.  Any statement provided in accordance with this Section shall be deemed 
to have been accepted as correct, unless written notice to the contrary is received by the Committee within thirty (30) days after the mailing of 
such statement to the Participant.  

   
7.4                                  Payment of Expenses .  All costs and expenses incurred in administering the Plan shall be paid by the Corporation.  
   

ARTICLE VIII  
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION  

   
8.1                                  Amendment .  The Corporation hereby reserves the right, at any time and from time to time, by written action of its Board of 

Directors (or by written action of an officer or officers of the Corporation to whom such Board of Directors has expressly delegated the 
authority to amend the Plan), to amend, modify or alter any or all of the provisions of the Plan without the consent of any Eligible Person, 
Participant, Designated Recipient or other person; however, no amendment shall operate retroactively so as to affect adversely any rights to 
which a Participant may be entitled under the provisions of the Plan as in effect prior to such action.  Any such amendment, modification or 
alteration shall be expressed in an instrument executed by an authorized officer or officers of the Corporation, and shall become effective as of 
the date designated in such instrument.  

   
8.2                                  Termination .  The Corporation reserves the right to suspend, discontinue or terminate the Plan, at any time, in whole or in 

part, by written action of its Board of Directors, effective as of the date designated in such written action, without the consent any Eligible 
Person, Participant, Designated Recipient or other person.  

   
ARTICLE IX  

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  
   

9.1                                  Employment Remains At Will .  Nothing in the adoption, maintenance or operation of the Plan shall confer on any 
employee, Eligible Person or Participant the right to continued employment by the Corporation or by any affiliate or subsidiary corporation 
thereof, or be treated or considered evidence of an intent to provide continued employment to such individual, or affect in any way the right of 
the Corporation or such affiliate or subsidiary, to terminate such individual’s employment, at any time and for any reason.  Any question as to 
whether and when there has been a termination of a Participant’s employment, and the cause of such termination, shall be determined by the 
Committee; any such determination by the Committee shall be final, binding and conclusive.  

   
9.2                                  Facility of Payments .  Whenever, in the opinion of the Committee, a person entitled to receive any payment, or installment 

thereof, is under a legal disability or is unable to manage his financial affairs, the Committee shall have the discretionary authority to direct 
payments to such person’s legal representative, or to a relative or friend of such person for his benefit.  Alternatively, the Committee may in its 
discretion apply the payment for the benefit of such person in such manner as the Committee deems advisable.  Any such payment or 
application of benefits, made in good faith and in accordance with the provisions of this Section, shall completely discharge any liability of the 
Plan, the Corporation and the Committee with respect to such payment or application of benefits.  
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9.3                                  Plan Is Unfunded; No Obligation to Fund .  All Accounts or interests in the Plan are unfunded and the Corporation shall 

have no obligation to establish any special or separate fund, or segregate any of its assets in order to assure the payment of any amounts due or 
becoming due and payable under the Plan; however, to provide for the discharge of its obligations under the Plan, the Corporation may in its 
sole discretion establish a fund in its name, or acquire property or contract rights in its name; provided that no Participant or other person (other 
than the Corporation) shall acquire a legal or equitable interest in any such fund, property or contract.  The right of a Participant or his 
Designated Recipient to receive a distribution hereunder shall constitute an unsecured claim against the general assets of the Corporation, and 
no Participant or Designated Recipient or other person shall have any right in or against any amounts credited under the Plan or any other 
specific assets of the Corporation.  All amounts credited under the Plan to any Accounts maintained for or on behalf of a Participant shall 
constitute general assets of the Corporation and may be disposed of by the Corporation at such time and for such purposes as it may deem 
appropriate.  

   
9.4                                  Anti-Alienation .  No right, benefit or interest in the Plan shall be subject to anticipation, alienation, sale, assignment, 

pledge, partition, lien, levy, encumbrance or charge; and any attempt to anticipate, alienate, sell, assign, pledge, partition, lien, levy, encumber 
or charge the same shall be void.  No such right, benefit or interest shall be liable for or subject to the debts, contracts, liabilities, or torts of the 
person entitled to such benefits, including claims for alimony, marital assets or property, support, or separate maintenance by the spouse of the 
Participant.  If a Participant should become insolvent or bankrupt, or attempt to anticipate, alienate, sell, assign, pledge, encumber or charge 
any right to benefits under this Plan, such Participant’s interest in the Plan, in the discretion of the Committee, shall be extinguished; in such 
event, the Committee in its sole discretion may hold or apply the interest at issue, or any part thereof, for the benefit of such Participant, such 
Participant’s spouse, or such Participant’s Designated Recipient, in such manner as the Committee in its sole discretion may deem proper.  
Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, the Corporation shall have the unrestricted right to set off against or recover out of any 
payments or benefits becoming payable to or for the benefit of a Participant, at the time such payments or benefits otherwise become payable 
hereunder, any amounts owed or owing to the Corporation by such Participant.  

   
9.5                                  Indemnification .  Each Participant, by executing a Compensation Deferral Agreement and becoming a Participant 

hereunder, acknowledges and agrees to indemnify and hold the Corporation harmless from and against any damages, losses and expenses 
(including without limitation litigation costs incurred by the Corporation in connection with the administration of the Plan) arising from third-
party claims disputes involving such Participant’s Plan interest (including without limitation, tax liens and levies, creditors’ claims, 
garnishment and bankruptcy proceedings, and proceedings in domestic relations court).  

   
9.6                                  Unclaimed Interests .  If the Committee shall at any time be unable to make distribution or payment of benefits hereunder to 

a Participant or any Designated Recipient of a Participant by reason of the fact that such Participant’s or Designated Recipient’s whereabouts is 
unknown, the Committee shall so certify, and thereafter the Committee shall attempt to locate such missing person.  In the event that such 
missing person is not located with seven (7) years, then the Committee shall cause the Corporation to pay over to the Secretary of State of the 
state whose law has jurisdiction over such matters any and all amounts then owed to such person, in accordance with the unclaimed funds law 
of such state, and the Corporation’s obligations thereto shall thereupon be considered fully and completely discharged and satisfied.  
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9.7                                  References to Code, Statutes and Regulations .  Any and all references in this Plan to any provision of the Code, ERISA, or 

any other statute, law, regulation, ruling or order shall be deemed to refer also to any successor statute, law, regulation, ruling or order.  
   
9.8                                  Liability .  The Corporation, and its directors, officers and employees, shall be free from liability, joint or several, for 

personal acts, omissions, and conduct, and for the acts, omissions and conduct of duly appointed agents, in the administration of this Plan.  
   
9.9                                  Governing Law; Severability .  The Plan shall be construed according to the laws of the State of Texas, and all provisions 

hereof shall be administered according to the laws of that State, except to the extent preempted by federal law (including, without limitation, 
ERISA).  In the event that any one or more of the provisions of the Plan shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, 
such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Plan; rather, the Plan shall be construed as if such 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provisions had never been contained herein, and there shall be deemed substituted such other provision as will 
most nearly accomplish the intent of the parties to the extent permitted by applicable law.  

   
9.10                            Taxes .  The Corporation shall be entitled to withhold and remit any federal, state and local taxes from any distribution made 

hereunder which the Corporation believes are necessary, appropriate or required by relevant law, regulation or ruling.  
   
9.11                            Tax Consequences of Participation .  While the Plan is designed to provide Eligible Persons the opportunity to defer 

Compensation on a tax-deferred basis, the Corporation makes no representation, warranty or guarantee of any federal, state or local tax 
consequences of participation in the Plan to any Participant or Designated Recipient (or personal representative or attorney-in-fact for such 
Participant or Designated Recipient).  

   
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, URANIUM RESOURCES, INC, by action of its Board of Directors, has duly adopted Uranium 

Resources, Inc.  Deferred Compensation Plan for 2000 and 2001, effective as of the 1st day of January, 2000.  
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URANIUM RESOURCES, INC  

      
      
   

By 
   

   
Name: Paul K. Willmott  

   
Title:  Chairman, President and Chief  

Executive Officer  



   
EXHIBIT A  

   
PARTICIPANTS  

   
Tom Ehrlich  
Mark Pelizza  
Rick Van Horn  
Paul Willmott  
Leland O. Erdahl  
George R. Ireland  

   

 



   
EXHIBIT B  

   
ELECTIONS BY PARTICIPANTS  

   

   

 

      

Gross  
Salary  

$  
   

Deferral  
%  

   
                 
Tom Ehrlich  

   105,000 
   15.48 % 

Mark Pelizza  
   105,000 

   9.24 % 
Rick Van Horn  

   130,000 
   16.00 % 

Paul Willmott  
   197,500 

   45.57 % 
Leland O. Erdahl  

   18,000 
   45.57 % 

George R. Ireland  
   18,000 

   45.57 % 



   
EXHIBIT C  

   
DEFERRED COMPENSATION ELECTION  

   
THIS DEFERRED COMPENSATION ELECTION AGREEMENT is entered into pursuant to the provisions of the Uranium 

Resources, Inc.  Deferred Compensation Plan for 2000 and 2001 (“Plan”). All capitalized terms in this Agreement shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in the Plan.  

   
1.                Deferral Election .  I hereby elect to defer receipt of% of my Compensation earned in respect of the calendar year 2000 and 2001.  I 

understand that this election may not be changed except with the consent of the Committee.  
   
2.                Deferral Period .  All Deferred Amounts will be paid on January 11, 2006.  
   
3.                I understand that this Plan does not provide me with any actual rights or interests in any particular funds, securities or property of the 

Company, or any property or assets held by any agent of the Company or the Committee, or in any shares of Common Stock of Uranium 
Resources, Inc.  I also understand that my right to receive distributions under the Plan makes me a general unsecured creditor of the 
Company with no greater priority than any other general unsecured creditor of the Company.  

   
4.                Designated Recipient : In the event of my death, I designate the following individual or entity as beneficiary to receive distributions under 

the Plan:  
   

   
5.                Miscellaneous .  I understand that this Agreement is subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of the Plan, as in effect from time to 

time, in all respects.  I have received and reviewed the Plan as currently in effect.  I agree to accept as final and binding all decisions and 
interpretations of the Committee relating to the Plan and this Agreement.  
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Signature of Participant  
      
      
   

Printed Name of Participant  
      
      
   

Social Security Number of Participant  
      

, 2000  
      
Received and accepted on behalf of the  
Committee this      day of August, 2000.  

   

      
         
Paul K. Willmott  

   



   
EXHIBIT D  

   
SHARE ELECTION  

   
Uranium Resources, Inc.  
12750 Merit Drive, Suite 720  
Lb 12  
Dallas, Texas  75251  
   
Gentlemen:  

   
I hereby elect to receive all amounts deferred under the Deferred Compensation Plan for 2000 and 2001 and the Additional Deferred 

Amount in shares of Common Stock in accordance with the Plan.  
   

By electing to receive shares of Common Stock, I represent that I am acquiring the shares of Common Stock for my own account, as 
principal, for investment, and not with a view to the resale of such shares of Common Stock or any interest therein and further understand and 
agree that the following restrictions and limitations are applicable to my purchase and any resale or other transfer I may make of the shares of 
Common Stock:  

   
(i)                                      The shares of Common Stock shall not be sold or otherwise transferred unless the shares of Common Stock are registered 
under the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws or are exempt therefrom.  

   
(ii)                                   A legend in substantially the following form will be placed on any certificates or other documents evidencing the shares of 
Common Stock:  

   
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT OR DOCUMENT HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR 
INVESTMENT AND HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED.  
WITHOUT SUCH REGISTRATION, SUCH SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED, OR 
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED AT ANY TIME WHATSOEVER, EXCEPT UPON DELIVERY TO THE COMPANY OF 
AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED FOR 
SUCH TRANSFER OR THE SUBMISSION TO THE COMPANY OF SUCH OTHER EVIDENCE AS MAY BE 
SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY TO THE EFFECT THAT ANY SUCH TRANSFER WILL NOT BE IN 
VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAW OR 
ANY RULE OR REGULATION PROMULGATED THEREUNDER.  
   

I understand that the Corporation will make appropriate withholding for all relevant federal, state and local tax purposes from the non-
deferred portion of my Compensation with respect to the shares of Common Stock that I have elected to receive based on the Share Price.  On 
each Distribution Date if the fair market value of the Common Stock is in excess of the Share Price, the Corporation will be required to 
withhold additional amounts based upon such excess.  The source of such additional amounts will be Compensation otherwise payable to me 
on a Distribution Date, to the extent sufficient.  If such amounts  

   

 



   
are insufficient, I will be required to pay to the Corporation the appropriate amounts as a condition to receipt of the shares.  
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Exhibit 10.30 
   
February 21, 2005  
   
Mr. Paul K. Willmott  
President  
Uranium Resources, Inc.  
650 S. Edwards Lane, Suite 108  
Dallas, Texas  75067  
   
Dear Mr. P. Willmott,  
   
With reference to your letter dated February 17, 2005, your request has been seriously considered by us, and now we hereby advise you of our 
acceptance for increasing the sales/purchase price by US$[redacted] per pounds for the 2004 and 2005 deliveries under the existing Contract 
dated January 13 th , 2004 as amended on August 19 th , 2004.  Our decision was made by taking account of our long term relationships 
between two companies and the fact of a long way difference between our agreed price in the Contract and the current uranium market price.  
   
We hope the above our decision would tighten our long established relationships further and would lead valuable business opportunity on both 
you and us in the near future.  
   
   
Sincerely yours,  
   
   
[redacted]  

   

   
  

Exhibit 10.31 
   

NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT  
   

URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  
Dallas, Texas  

   
March 24, 2005  

   
To Each of the Purchasers Listed in Schedule I Hereto:  
   

Re:  Unsecured Term Notes - Series 2005A  
   

Ladies and Gentlemen:  
   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby agrees with each of you (individually sometimes 

referred to as a “Purchaser”  and collectively sometimes referred to as the “Purchasers” ), each acting for itself severally and not jointly with the 

   
Very truly yours,  

      
      
   

Participant  
      
      
      
   

Printed Name of Participant  
      
      
      
   

Social Security Number of Participant  



others or with any other person, as follows:  
   
1.                                        Definitions .  For the purposes of this Agreement:  

   
1.1                                  The term “Notes” shall mean, except where the context otherwise requires, the $600,000 aggregate principal amount of the 

unsecured term notes designated Series 2005A to be issued in registered form and to be purchased by you pursuant to Section 4 hereof and any 
Notes delivered in substitution or exchange therefor, or upon transfers thereof, and the term “Note” shall mean any one of the Notes.  

   
1.2                                  The term “Holder of Record” shall mean in connection with any Note the owner of such Note listed on Schedule I or any 

subsequent person in whose name the Note is registered pursuant to Section 6.3.  
   
1.3                                  The term “Subsidiary” or “Subsidiaries” shall mean a corporation or corporations of which the Company shall at the time 

own directly or indirectly 50% or more of the outstanding common stock and all of the outstanding stock of any other class, and the term 
“wholly-owned Subsidiary” shall mean a corporation of which the Company shall at the time own directly or indirectly all of the outstanding 
stock, except for directors’ qualifying shares.  
   
2.                                        Representations and Warranties of the Company .  The Company represents and warrants that:  

   
2.1                                  Organization .  The Company is a duly domesticated and validly existing corporation in good standing under the laws of the 

state of Delaware with all necessary corporate power to enter into and perform this Agreement, issue and sell the Notes and carry on the 
business now conducted by it.  The Company is duly qualified and in good standing as a foreign corporation in all jurisdictions in which the 
nature of its business or the character of the property owned by it makes such qualification necessary, and is duly authorized, qualified and 
licensed under all laws, regulations, ordinances or orders of public authorities to carry on its business in the places and in the manner presently 
conducted.  

   
All necessary corporate proceedings have been taken by the board of directors of the Company to authorize the execution, delivery 

and performance of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.  No action is required by the stockholders of the Company in 
connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.  The Agreement and the Notes have each been duly authorized, 
executed and delivered and each of them is enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms.  

   
2.2                                  No Legal Obstacle to Loan .  Neither the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement nor compliance 

with the provisions of this Agreement or of the Notes, will result in any breach or violation of any of the provisions of, or constitute a default 
under, the charter or by-laws of the Company, or any provision of law,  
   

 



   
agreement or other instrument which will remain in effect after the issue and sale of the Notes and to which the Company is a party or by which 
it is bound, or of any applicable order or regulation of any governmental authority having jurisdiction, or result in the creation under any other 
agreement or instrument of any lien or encumbrance upon any assets of the Company.  

   
2.3                                  Finders .  All negotiations relative to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein have been carried on by the 

Company directly with Zesiger Capital Group LLC in such manner as not to give rise to any valid claim against the Company for a finder’s fee, 
brokerage commission or like payment.  

   
2.4                                  Authorization and Approvals .  The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement do not require any approval or 

consent on the part of, or filing, registration or qualification with, any governmental body, federal, state or local that has not been obtained or 
performed or any third person, pursuant to any agreement or otherwise.  
   
3.                                        Representations; Warranties and Acknowledgments of the Purchasers .  
   

3.1                                  Purchase for Investment .  Each of the Purchasers represents and warrants to the Company that it will acquire the Notes to be 
purchased by it for its own account for investment and not with a view to the distribution thereof, and that it has no present intention of making 
any distribution or disposition of them; provided , however, that the disposition of its property shall at all times be and remain within its 
control.  The acquisition of Notes by each of the Purchasers shall constitute its confirmation of said representation and warranty.  Each of the 
Purchasers understands that the Notes are being sold to it in a transaction which is exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities 
Act of 1933, and that the Notes must be held by it and may not be resold unless they are subsequently registered under the Act or an exemption 
from such registration is available.  Each of the Purchasers further understands that the Notes will be legended with a notation that they were 
acquired for investment in an exempt transaction and that they may not be resold unless they are subsequently registered under the Securities 
Act of 1933 or unless an exemption from such registration is available.  

   
4.                                        Purchase and Sale of the Notes .  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company agrees to issue and sell to each 
Purchaser and each Purchaser agrees to purchase from the Company, at the Closing, at the principal amount thereof, the principal amounts of 
the Notes set opposite its name on Schedule I attached hereto.  
   

The Closing shall be held at 10:00 a.m.  on March 24, 2005 in the offices of Zesiger Capital.  At the Closing, the Company will 
execute and deliver to you, unless otherwise requested by you, a single Note, registered in your name (or in the name of any nominee set forth 
on Schedule I), in the principal amount set forth opposite your name on Schedule I hereto, dated the date of the Closing, against payment of the 
purchase price by wire transfer of immediately available funds or delivery of an official bank check in Federal Funds or other immediately 
available funds.  

   
5.                                        [intentionally left blank]  
   
6.                                        The Notes, Use of Proceeds, Payment and Exchange .  

   
6.1                                  The Notes .  The Notes shall be in registered form, and shall be in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto.  Each 

Note shall be executed in the name and on behalf of the Company by its President, any Vice-President or its Treasurer, and shall be dated its 
date of issue.  

   
6.2                                  Use of Proceeds .  The proceeds of the Notes shall be used for general corporate purposes.  
   
6.3                                  Transfer, Exchange or Replacement of Notes .  The Company shall keep at its principal office a register in which shall be 

entered the names and addresses of all Holders of Record of the Notes and the particulars of the Notes held by them and of all transfers of the 
Notes.  The Holder of Record of any Note shall be deemed to be and treated as the owner thereof for all purposes of this Agreement and the 
Company shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  Payment of or on account of the principal of and interest on such Note shall be 
made only to or upon the order in writing of such Holder of Record.  For the purpose of any request, direction or consent hereunder, the 
Company  
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may deem and treat the Holder of Record of any Note (or you so long as such Note is registered in the name of your nominee) as the owner 
thereof without production of the Note.  
   

Upon surrender for registration of transfer of any Note at the principal office of the Company, the Company shall execute and deliver, 
at its expense (other than transfer taxes, if any) one or more new Notes of an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount 
of the Note surrendered for registration of transfer registered in the name of the designated transferee or transferees.  Every Note presented or 
surrendered for registration of transfer shall be duly endorsed, or be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer duly executed with 
signatures guarantees, by the Holder of Record of such Note or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  At the request of a Holder of Record of 
any Note, the Company at its expense will execute and deliver in replacement of any Note a new Note in a principal amount equal to the Note 
held by such Holder of Record and so replaced; notwithstanding the foregoing the Company may condition the replacement of a Note reported 
as lost, stolen or destroyed by a Holder of Record upon the receipt from such Holder of Record of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory 
to the Company; provided, however , that if either of you or your nominees shall be such Holder of Record your agreement of indemnity shall 
be sufficient for all purposes of this section.  Any Note or Notes issued in exchange for any Note or upon transfer or replacement thereof shall 
carry the rights to unpaid interest and interest to accrue which were carried by the Note so exchanged, transferred or replaced, and neither gain 
nor loss of interest shall result from any such transfer, replacement or exchange.  The Company agrees that it will pay shipping and insurance 
charges, from and to your main office, involved in the exchange by you of any Note held by you.  Each transfer, exchange or replacement made 
pursuant to this Section 6.3 shall be effected in such manner that no gain or loss of principal or interest shall result therefrom.  

   
Except for a transfer to a client or member of Zesiger Capital Group LLC as to whom Zesiger Capital Group LLC can represent that 

such client or member is an accredited investor, the Company may condition acceptance of any transfer of a Note upon the receipt of an 
opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Company to the effect that such disposition will not require registration of the transfer of the Note under 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and concurrence by counsel for the Company in the conclusions expressed in such opinion.  
   
7.             Subsequent Equity or Debt Offerings .  If the Company shall hereafter make a subsequent offering of debt securities or any private 
placement of Common Stock or other equity securities, each of the Holders of the Notes shall have the right but not an obligation to purchase 
or cause their designees to purchase such debt or Common Stock (or other securities) in such offering, by paying the purchase price for such 
debt or, if the subsequent offering is of stock (or other securities), by forgiving unpaid interest and/or principal due and unpaid on the Notes, in 
each case on the terms offered by the Company in such subsequent offering.  
   
8.                                        Covenants .  
   

8.1                                  The Company covenants and agrees that so long as any of the Notes is outstanding, it will duly and punctually pay the 
principal and interest on the Notes in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and of the Notes.  

   
9.                                        Prepayment .  Prepayment of any Notes shall be made only pro rata to the Holders of the outstanding Notes in proportion to their 
respective unpaid principal amounts.  
   
10.                                  Defaults .  

   
10.1                            If one or more of the following events (each herein termed an “event of default”) shall have occurred and be continuing, that 

is to say:  
   
10.1.1                   If default shall be made in the payment of interest on or principal of any of the Notes when and as the same shall 

become due and payable, whether at their stated maturity, by declaration or otherwise, or if default shall be made in the observance or 
performance of the Company’s obligations under Section 8.2 hereof; or  

   
10.1.2                   If default shall be made in the due performance or observance of any other expressed or implied covenant, 

agreement or provision of the Notes or of this Agreement and such default shall have continued for a  
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period of thirty days after written notice thereof to the Company from any Holder of Record, or a breach shall exist in any representation or 
warranty herein contained; or  

   
10.1.3                   If default shall be made under the terms of any other agreement relating to money borrowed by the Company and 

such default shall continue for more than the period of grace, if any, therein specified; or  
   
10.1.4                   If the Company or any Subsidiary, shall be involved in financial difficulties as evidenced  
   
(a)                                   by its admission in writing of its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due;  

   
(b)                                  by its filing a petition in bankruptcy or for reorganization or for the adoption of an arrangement under the 
Bankruptcy Act (as now or in the future amended) or an admission seeking the relief therein provided;  

   
(c)                                   by its making an assignment for the benefit of its creditors;  

   
(d)                                  by its consenting to the appointment of a receiver for all or a substantial part of its property;  

   
(e)                                   by its being adjudicated a bankrupt;  

   
(f)                                     by the entry of a court order appointing a receiver or trustee for all or a substantial part of its property without its 
consent, which order shall not be vacated, set aside or stayed within ninety days from the date of entry; or  

   
(g)                                  by the assumption of custody or sequestration by a court of competent jurisdiction of all or substantially all of its 
property, which custody or sequestration shall not be suspended or terminated with ninety days from its inception;  

   
then and in each and every such event of default, the holder of any Note may proceed to protect and enforce its rights by suit in equity, action at 
law and/or other appropriate proceeding either for specific performance of any covenant or condition contained in such Note or herein or in aid 
of the exercise of any power granted in such Note or herein, and without notice or any action by the Holder the unpaid balance of and accrued 
and unpaid interest on such Note shall forthwith become due and payable, without presentation, protest, demand or notice of any kind, all of 
which are hereby expressly waived.  

   
10.2                            Notice of Demand or Default .  If any holder of a Note shall demand payment of such Note or take any other action of which 

the Company shall have actual knowledge in respect of a default or an event of default, the Company will forthwith give written notice, 
specifying such action and the nature of the default or event of default, to each Holder of Record of the Notes then outstanding.  

   
10.3                            Waiver by Company .  To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Company hereby agrees to waive, and does hereby 

absolutely and irrevocably waive and relinquish and covenant not to assert the benefit and advantage of, any valuation, stay appraisement, 
extension or redemption laws now existing or which may hereafter exist, which, but for this provision, might be applicable to any sale made 
under the judgment, order or decree of any court, or otherwise, based on the Notes or on any claim for interest on the Notes.  

   
10.4                            Costs and Expenses .  The Company covenants that if default be made in any payment of principal or interest on the Notes, 

it will pay to the holder thereof, to the extent permitted under applicable law, such further amount as shall be sufficient to cover the cost and 
expense of collection, including reasonable compensation to the attorneys and counsel of the holder thereof for all services rendered in that 
connection.  

   
10.5                            Course of Dealing .  No course of dealing between the Company and you or any Holder of Record of the Notes or any delay 

on your part or on the part of any Holder of Record of the Notes in exercising any rights under the Notes or hereunder shall operate as a waiver 
of any of your rights or the rights of any Holder of Record of the Notes.  
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11.                                  Survival of Covenants .  All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein and in certificates delivered pursuant 
hereto shall be deemed to have been material and relied on by you, notwithstanding any investigation made by you or on your behalf, and shall 
survive the execution and delivery to you of the Notes and your payment therefor.  
   
12.                                  Addresses .  Any notice or demand which by any provisions of this Agreement is required or provided to be given shall be deemed to 
have been sufficiently given or served for all purposes by being sent as registered or certified mail, postage and registration charges prepaid, to 
the following addresses:  if to the Company, Uranium Resources, Inc., 650 South Edmonds, Suite 108, Lewisville, Texas 75067, or, if any 
other address shall at any time be designated by the Company in writing to all persons who are Holders of Record of the Notes at the time of 
such designation, to such other address; and if to a Purchaser, to its address set forth on Schedule I hereto, or, if any other address shall at any 
time be designated by such Purchaser in writing to the Company, to such address; and, if to Holders of Record not Purchasers, to their 
addresses given to the Company pursuant to Section 6.3 or, if any other address shall at any time be designated by a Holder of Record in 
writing to the Company, at such address.  Until another place of payment shall be appointed, all payments in respect of the Notes shall be made 
to the Purchasers at addresses set forth on Schedule I hereto.  
   
13.                                  Dates; Captions .  For convenience of reference, this Agreement shall be dated as of the date first above written, regardless of the date 
upon which you shall have signed the acceptance hereof.  Captions and headings are for the convenience of reference only and shall not be 
deemed part of this Agreement or used in its construction.  
   
14.                                  Benefits .  All of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 
respective successors and assigns, including as the Purchasers’ assigns all assignees of the Notes, provided, however, that despite any 
assignment or transfer of the Notes, the Company shall be entitled to treat the Purchasers as the Holders of Record thereof unless and until 
presentation for registration of transfer thereof shall have been made as provided in Section 6.3.  
   
15.                                  Whole Agreement; Controlling Law; Exhibits and Schedules .  This Agreement, which constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof (replacing any other agreements written and oral), shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the law of the state of Delaware.  Exhibits and schedules attached hereto shall be deemed incorporated by reference herein as 
fully as if set forth herein in full.  
   
16.                                  Counterparts; Signatures .  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when executed and 
delivered, shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument.  Signatures may be delivered by 
facsimile.  

   
If the foregoing is satisfactory to you, please sign the form of confirmation and acceptance on the enclosed counterpart of this 

Agreement and return the same to the Company, whereupon this letter will become and evidence a binding contract between the Company and 
you as of the date and year first above written.  

   

   
The foregoing Agreement  
is hereby accepted.  
   
The Purchasers Listed on Schedule I attached hereto  
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Very truly yours,  

      
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   

      
   

By:  
      

   
Paul K. Willmott, President  



   
By: Zesiger Capital Group LLC, as agent and attorney-in-fact  
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By:  
   
      
Name:  
Title:  



   
SCHEDULE I  

   

   

*  c/o Zesiger Capital Group LLC, 320 Park Avenue, 30 th Floor, New York, NY 10022  
Attn: Albert L.  Zesiger.  

   

 

Purchasers  
   

Principal  
Amount of  

Notes  
Purchased  

   
Nominee/Record  

Holder  
   

Address for Notices and  
Payment on the Notes  

                     
Robert K. Winters  

   

$ 3,000 

   

Same as Purchaser  

   

Merrill Lynch  
Money Manager Services  
101 Hudson Street, 7 th Floor  
Jersey City, New Jersey  
07302-3997  
Att: Chris Belfiore  

Domenic Mizio  

   

$ 15,000 

   

Same as Purchaser  

   

Merrill Lynch  
Money Manager Services  
101 Hudson Street, 7 th Floor  
Jersey City, New Jersey  
07302-3997  
Att: Chris Belfiore  

J.P. Morgan Trust Co.  
(Bahamas) Ltd, as  
Trustee U/A/D 11/30/03  

   

$ 40,000 

   

Same as Purchaser  

   

Merrill Lynch  
Money Manager Services  
101 Hudson Street, 7 th Floor  
Jersey City, New Jersey  
07302-3997  
Att: Chris Belfiore  

City of Milford Pension  
& Retirement Fund  

   

$ 125,000 

   

Same as Purchaser  

   

Merrill Lynch  
157 Church Street  
New Haven, Conn. 06510  
Att: Sophia Haeri  

Public Employees  
retirement System of  
Idaho  

   

$ 417,000 

   

Mellon Bank NA, custodian 
for PERSI-Zesiger Capital  

   

Mellon Bank, N.A.  
120 Broadway, 13 th Floor  
New York, N.Y. 10271  
Att: Cynthia Aranda  



   
EXHIBIT A  

   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
Unsecured Term Note  

   
Number: Series 2005A -  

   

   
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, URANIUM RESOURCES, INC., a Delaware corporation, hereby promises to pay to [name of payee] 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Payee”) on March 24, 2006 , or registered assigns, [amount in words] Dollars ($[amount number]), together with 
interest on the whole amount of said principal amount remaining from time to time unpaid from the date hereof at the rate of ten percent (10%) 
per annum until the principal hereof shall be paid in full.  Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 30-day month and 360-day year.  

   
This Note is issued pursuant to, and is entitled to the benefits of the provisions of a certain Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 

2005 (“Note Purchase Agreement”) between the undersigned and the Purchaser named therein and others; but neither this reference to said 
Note Purchase Agreement nor any provision thereof shall affect or impair the absolute and unconditional obligation of the maker of this Note 
to pay the principal hereof and interest hereon as herein provided.  

   
This Note shall upon an event of default as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement become immediately due and payable without 

any notice or other action by the holder hereof, as specified in said Note Purchase Agreement.  This Note may be prepaid at any time without 
penalty with interest through the date of prepayment.  
   

Upon an event of default, this Note shall, during the period of default and until paid in full, bear interest at the rate of 14% per annum 
rather than 10% per annum.  

   
As provided in said Note Purchase Agreement, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer, duly endorsed, or accompanied 

by a written instrument of transfer duly executed, by the registered holder hereof or his, her or its attorney duly authorized in writing, a new 
Note of the same tenor (except for the name of the registered holder) and in an equal principal amount will be issued to, and registered in the 
name of, the transferee.  The Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment and for all other purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
   

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the state of Delaware without giving effect to conflict of 
law rules.  

   
The maker and all endorsers of this Note each hereby waives presentment, demand, notice of nonpayment, protest and all other 

demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance or enforcement of this Note.  
   

THIS PROMISSORY NOTE IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF THE NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 24, 
2005 BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ZESIGER CAPITAL GROUP LLC, AS AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT FOR THE 
PAYEE, INCLUDING THE RESTRICTIONS UPON TRANSFER SET FORTH IN SUCH AGREEMENT.  A COPY OF THE 
AGREEMENT IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.  
   
THIS PROMISSORY NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“ACT”).  IT MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN 
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AS TO THE  
   

 

$[amount number]  
   March 24, 2005  



   
NOTE UNDER SAID ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT 
SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.  
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URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

      
      
   

By:  
      

   
Paul K. Willmott, President  



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
Unsecured Term Note  

   
Number: Series 2005A - 4  

   

   
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, URANIUM RESOURCES, INC., a Delaware corporation, hereby promises to pay to City of Milford 

Pension & Retirement Fund (hereinafter referred to as the “Payee”) on March 24, 2006, or registered assigns, One Hundred Twenty Five 
Thousand Dollars ($125,000), together with interest on the whole amount of said principal amount remaining from time to time unpaid from 
the date hereof at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum until the principal hereof shall be paid in full.  Interest shall be computed on the basis 
of a 30-day month and 360-day year.  

   
This Note is issued pursuant to, and is entitled to the benefits of the provisions of a certain Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 

2005 (“Note Purchase Agreement”) between the undersigned and the Purchaser named therein and others; but neither this reference to said 
Note Purchase Agreement nor any provision thereof shall affect or impair the absolute and unconditional obligation of the maker of this Note 
to pay the principal hereof and interest hereon as herein provided.  

   
This Note shall upon an event of default as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement become immediately due and payable without 

any notice or other action by the holder hereof, as specified in said Note Purchase Agreement.  This Note may be prepaid at any time without 
penalty with interest through the date of prepayment.  
   

Upon an event of default, this Note shall, during the period of default and until paid in full, bear interest at the rate of 14% per annum 
rather than 10% per annum.  

   
As provided in said Note Purchase Agreement, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer, duly endorsed, or accompanied 

by a written instrument of transfer duly executed, by the registered holder hereof or his, her or its attorney duly authorized in writing, a new 
Note of the same tenor (except for the name of the registered holder) and in an equal principal amount will be issued to, and registered in the 
name of, the transferee.  The Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment and for all other purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
   

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the state of Delaware without giving effect to conflict of 
law rules.  

   
The maker and all endorsers of this Note each hereby waives presentment, demand, notice of nonpayment, protest and all other 

demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance or enforcement of this Note.  
   

THIS PROMISSORY NOTE IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF THE NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 24, 
2005 BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ZESIGER CAPITAL GROUP LLC, AS AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT FOR THE 
PAYEE, INCLUDING THE RESTRICTIONS UPON TRANSFER SET FORTH IN SUCH AGREEMENT.  A COPY OF THE 
AGREEMENT IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.  
   
THIS PROMISSORY NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“ACT”).  IT MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN 
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AS TO THE NOTE UNDER SAID ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL 
REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.  

   

 

$125,000  
   March 24, 2005  



   

   

 

   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

      
      
   

By:  
      

   
Paul K. Willmott, President  



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
Unsecured Term Note  

   
Number: Series 2005A - 3  

   

   
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, URANIUM RESOURCES, INC., a Delaware corporation, hereby promises to pay to J.P.  Morgan Trust 

Co.  (Bahamas) Ltd., as Trustee U/A/D 11/30/03 (hereinafter referred to as the “Payee”) on March 24, 2006, or registered assigns, Forty 
Thousand Dollars ($40,000), together with interest on the whole amount of said principal amount remaining from time to time unpaid from the 
date hereof at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum until the principal hereof shall be paid in full.  Interest shall be computed on the basis of 
a 30-day month and 360-day year.  

   
This Note is issued pursuant to, and is entitled to the benefits of the provisions of a certain Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 

2005 (“Note Purchase Agreement”) between the undersigned and the Purchaser named therein and others; but neither this reference to said 
Note Purchase Agreement nor any provision thereof shall affect or impair the absolute and unconditional obligation of the maker of this Note 
to pay the principal hereof and interest hereon as herein provided.  

   
This Note shall upon an event of default as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement become immediately due and payable without 

any notice or other action by the holder hereof, as specified in said Note Purchase Agreement.  This Note may be prepaid at any time without 
penalty with interest through the date of prepayment.  
   

Upon an event of default, this Note shall, during the period of default and until paid in full, bear interest at the rate of 14% per annum 
rather than 10% per annum.  

   
As provided in said Note Purchase Agreement, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer, duly endorsed, or accompanied 

by a written instrument of transfer duly executed, by the registered holder hereof or his, her or its attorney duly authorized in writing, a new 
Note of the same tenor (except for the name of the registered holder) and in an equal principal amount will be issued to, and registered in the 
name of, the transferee.  The Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment and for all other purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
   

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the state of Delaware without giving effect to conflict of 
law rules.  

   
The maker and all endorsers of this Note each hereby waives presentment, demand, notice of nonpayment, protest and all other 

demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance or enforcement of this Note.  
   

THIS PROMISSORY NOTE IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF THE NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 24, 
2005 BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ZESIGER CAPITAL GROUP LLC, AS AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT FOR THE 
PAYEE, INCLUDING THE RESTRICTIONS UPON TRANSFER SET FORTH IN SUCH AGREEMENT.  A COPY OF THE 
AGREEMENT IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.  
   
THIS PROMISSORY NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“ACT”).  IT MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN 
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AS TO THE NOTE UNDER SAID ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL 
REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.  

   

 

$40,000  
   March 24, 2005  



   

   

 

   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

      
      
   

By:  
      

   
Paul K. Willmott, President  



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
Unsecured Term Note  

   
Number: Series 2005A - 2  

   

   
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, URANIUM RESOURCES, INC., a Delaware corporation, hereby promises to pay to Domenic Mizio 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Payee”) on March 24, 2006, or registered assigns, Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000), together with interest on 
the whole amount of said principal amount remaining from time to time unpaid from the date hereof at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum 
until the principal hereof shall be paid in full.  Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 30-day month and 360-day year.  

   
This Note is issued pursuant to, and is entitled to the benefits of the provisions of a certain Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 

2005 (“Note Purchase Agreement”) between the undersigned and the Purchaser named therein and others; but neither this reference to said 
Note Purchase Agreement nor any provision thereof shall affect or impair the absolute and unconditional obligation of the maker of this Note 
to pay the principal hereof and interest hereon as herein provided.  

   
This Note shall upon an event of default as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement become immediately due and payable without 

any notice or other action by the holder hereof, as specified in said Note Purchase Agreement.  This Note may be prepaid at any time without 
penalty with interest through the date of prepayment.  
   

Upon an event of default, this Note shall, during the period of default and until paid in full, bear interest at the rate of 14% per annum 
rather than 10% per annum.  

   
As provided in said Note Purchase Agreement, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer, duly endorsed, or accompanied 

by a written instrument of transfer duly executed, by the registered holder hereof or his, her or its attorney duly authorized in writing, a new 
Note of the same tenor (except for the name of the registered holder) and in an equal principal amount will be issued to, and registered in the 
name of, the transferee.  The Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment and for all other purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
   

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the state of Delaware without giving effect to conflict of 
law rules.  

   
The maker and all endorsers of this Note each hereby waives presentment, demand, notice of nonpayment, protest and all other 

demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance or enforcement of this Note.  
   

THIS PROMISSORY NOTE IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF THE NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 24, 
2005 BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ZESIGER CAPITAL GROUP LLC, AS AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT FOR THE 
PAYEE, INCLUDING THE RESTRICTIONS UPON TRANSFER SET FORTH IN SUCH AGREEMENT.  A COPY OF THE 
AGREEMENT IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.  
   
THIS PROMISSORY NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“ACT”).  IT MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN 
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AS TO THE NOTE UNDER SAID ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL 
REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.  

   

 

$15,000  
   March 24, 2005  



   

   

 

   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

      
      
   

By:  
      

   
Paul K. Willmott, President  



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
Unsecured Term Note  

   
Number: Series 2005A - 5  

   

   
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, URANIUM RESOURCES, INC., a Delaware corporation, hereby promises to pay to Mellon Bank NA, 

Custodian for PERSI-Zesiger Capital (hereinafter referred to as the “Payee”) on March 24, 2006, or registered assigns, Four Hundred 
Seventeen Thousand Dollars ($417,000), together with interest on the whole amount of said principal amount remaining from time to time 
unpaid from the date hereof at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum until the principal hereof shall be paid in full.  Interest shall be 
computed on the basis of a 30-day month and 360-day year.  

   
This Note is issued pursuant to, and is entitled to the benefits of the provisions of a certain Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 

2005 (“Note Purchase Agreement”) between the undersigned and the Purchaser named therein and others; but neither this reference to said 
Note Purchase Agreement nor any provision thereof shall affect or impair the absolute and unconditional obligation of the maker of this Note 
to pay the principal hereof and interest hereon as herein provided.  

   
This Note shall upon an event of default as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement become immediately due and payable without 

any notice or other action by the holder hereof, as specified in said Note Purchase Agreement.  This Note may be prepaid at any time without 
penalty with interest through the date of prepayment.  
   

Upon an event of default, this Note shall, during the period of default and until paid in full, bear interest at the rate of 14% per annum 
rather than 10% per annum.  

   
As provided in said Note Purchase Agreement, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer, duly endorsed, or accompanied 

by a written instrument of transfer duly executed, by the registered holder hereof or his, her or its attorney duly authorized in writing, a new 
Note of the same tenor (except for the name of the registered holder) and in an equal principal amount will be issued to, and registered in the 
name of, the transferee.  The Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment and for all other purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
   

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the state of Delaware without giving effect to conflict of 
law rules.  

   
The maker and all endorsers of this Note each hereby waives presentment, demand, notice of nonpayment, protest and all other 

demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance or enforcement of this Note.  
   

THIS PROMISSORY NOTE IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF THE NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 24, 
2005 BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ZESIGER CAPITAL GROUP LLC, AS AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT FOR THE 
PAYEE, INCLUDING THE RESTRICTIONS UPON TRANSFER SET FORTH IN SUCH AGREEMENT.  A COPY OF THE 
AGREEMENT IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.  
   
THIS PROMISSORY NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“ACT”).  IT MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN 
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AS TO THE NOTE UNDER SAID ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL 
REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.  

   

 

$417,000  
   March 24, 2005  



   

   

 

   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

      
      
   

By:  
      

   
Paul K. Willmott, President  



   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

   
Unsecured Term Note  

   
Number: Series 2005A - 1  

   

   
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, URANIUM RESOURCES, INC., a Delaware corporation, hereby promises to pay to Robert K.  Winters 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Payee”) on March 24, 2006, or registered assigns, Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000), together with interest on 
the whole amount of said principal amount remaining from time to time unpaid from the date hereof at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum 
until the principal hereof shall be paid in full.  Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 30-day month and 360-day year.  

   
This Note is issued pursuant to, and is entitled to the benefits of the provisions of a certain Note Purchase Agreement dated March 24, 

2005 (“Note Purchase Agreement”) between the undersigned and the Purchaser named therein and others; but neither this reference to said 
Note Purchase Agreement nor any provision thereof shall affect or impair the absolute and unconditional obligation of the maker of this Note 
to pay the principal hereof and interest hereon as herein provided.  

   
This Note shall upon an event of default as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement become immediately due and payable without 

any notice or other action by the holder hereof, as specified in said Note Purchase Agreement.  This Note may be prepaid at any time without 
penalty with interest through the date of prepayment.  
   

Upon an event of default, this Note shall, during the period of default and until paid in full, bear interest at the rate of 14% per annum 
rather than 10% per annum.  

   
As provided in said Note Purchase Agreement, upon surrender of this Note for registration of transfer, duly endorsed, or accompanied 

by a written instrument of transfer duly executed, by the registered holder hereof or his, her or its attorney duly authorized in writing, a new 
Note of the same tenor (except for the name of the registered holder) and in an equal principal amount will be issued to, and registered in the 
name of, the transferee.  The Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment and for all other purposes, and the Company shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
   

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the state of Delaware without giving effect to conflict of 
law rules.  

   
The maker and all endorsers of this Note each hereby waives presentment, demand, notice of nonpayment, protest and all other 

demands and notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance, performance or enforcement of this Note.  
   

THIS PROMISSORY NOTE IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF THE NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 24, 
2005 BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ZESIGER CAPITAL GROUP LLC, AS AGENT AND ATTORNEY IN FACT FOR THE 
PAYEE, INCLUDING THE RESTRICTIONS UPON TRANSFER SET FORTH IN SUCH AGREEMENT.  A COPY OF THE 
AGREEMENT IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.  
   
THIS PROMISSORY NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“ACT”).  IT MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN 
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT AS TO THE NOTE UNDER SAID ACT OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL 
REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.  

   

   

   
  

Exhibit 23 
   

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT GEOLOGIST  
   

I hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2004 on Form 10-KSB of  
Uranium Resources, Inc.  and its subsidiaries of information contained in my summary reserve report dated March 29, 2004 .  
   
   

$3,000  
   March 24, 2005  

   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

      
      
   

By:  
      

   
Paul K. Willmott, President  

   
/s/ Richard F. Douglas  

   
   

By:  Richard F. Douglas  
      

   



   

   
  

Exhibit 31.1 
   

Certification of Chief Executive Officer  
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

   
I, Paul K.  Willmott, certify that:  
   
1.                                        I have reviewed this report on Form 10-KSB of Uranium Resources, Inc.;  
   
2.                                        Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;  

   
3.                                        Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented 
in this report;  

   
4.                                        The small business issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the small business issuer and have:  
   
(a)                                   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 

our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small business issuer, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being 
prepared;  

   
(b)                                  Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this 
report based on such evaluation; and  

   
(c)                                   Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 

during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer’s fourth fiscal quarter of the annual 
report) that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business issuer’s internal control over 
financial reporting; and  

   
5.                                        The small business issuer’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 

financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and the audit committee of small business issuer’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent functions):  
   
(a)                                   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer’s ability to record, process, summarize and report 
financial information; and  

   
(b)                                  Any fraud, whether material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the small business 

issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.  
   

   

   
  

Exhibit 31.2 
   

Certification of Chief Financial Officer  
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

   
I, Thomas H.  Ehrlich, certify that:  
   
1.                                        I have reviewed this report on Form 10-KSB of Uranium Resources, Inc.;  

Lakewood, Colorado  
March 30, 2005  

   

Date: March 30, 2005  
   

      
   

/s/ PAUL K. WILLMOTT  
   

   
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer  



   
2.                                        Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;  

   
3.                                        Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented 
in this report;  

   
4.                                        The small business issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the small business issuer and have:  
   
(a)                                   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 

our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small business issuer, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being 
prepared;  

   
(b)                                  Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this 
report based on such evaluation; and  

   
(c)                                   Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 

during the small business issuer’s most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer’s fourth fiscal quarter of the annual 
report) that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business issuer’s internal control over 
financial reporting; and  

   
5.                                        The small business issuer’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 

financial reporting, to the small business issuer’s auditors and the audit committee of small business issuer’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent functions):  
   
(a)                                   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer’s ability to record, process, summarize and report 
financial information; and  

   
(b)                                  Any fraud, whether material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the small business 

issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.  
   

   

   
Exhibit 32.1 

   
URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  

650 S.  Edmonds Lane, Suite 108, Lewisville, TX 75067  
972.219.3330 Phone 972.219.3311 Fax  

   
March 30, 2005  
   
Securities and Exchange Commission  
450 5 th Street, N.W.  
Washington, D.C.  20549  

   
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2003  

   
I, Paul K.  Willmott, President and Chief Executive Officer of Uranium Resources, Inc.  (the “Company”), certify, pursuant to 

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  
   
(1)                                   The Annual Report on Form 10-KSB of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004, which this certification 

accompanies, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  
   
(2)                                   The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 

operations of the Company.  
   

Date: March 30, 2005  
   

      
   

/s/ THOMAS H. EHRLICH  
   

   
Title: Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  

   



   

Exhibit 32.2 
   

URANIUM RESOURCES, INC.  
650 S.  Edmonds Lane, Suite 108, Lewisville, TX 75067  

972.219.3330 Phone 972.219.3311 Fax  
   
March 30, 2005  
   
Securities and Exchange Commission  
450 5 th Street, N.W.  
Washington, D.C.  20549  
   

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2003  
   
I, Thomas H.  Ehrlich, Vice President—Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Uranium Resources, Inc.  (the “Company”), certify, 

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  
   
(1)                                   The Annual Report on Form 10-KSB of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2004, which this certification 

accompanies, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  
   
(2)                                   The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 

operations of the Company.  
   

   

 

End of Filing  

  

© 2005 | EDGAR Online, Inc.  

/s/ PAUL K. WILLMOTT  
Paul K. Willmott  
President and Chief Executive Officer  
March 30, 2005  

/s/ THOMAS H. EHRLICH  
   

Thomas H. Ehrlich  
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  
March 30, 2005  


